
ETR ENERGY SERVICES LLC 

EXHIBIT C-3 

"Financial Statements," provide copies of the applicant’s two most recent years of audited 
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement). If audited 
financial statements are not available, provide officer certified financial statements. If the 
applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this requirement, it shailfile audited or 
officer certified financial statements covering the life of the business. 

Attached are the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year Ended 

December 31, 2013 and the Period from Inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012 

of Crius Energy Trust, Applicant’s parent entity. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Directors of Crius Energy Administrator Inc., as administrator of Crius Energy Trust 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Crius Energy Trust (the "Trust"), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidated 
Statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Crius Energy Trust as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012, in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board. 
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Hartford, Connecticut 
March 25, 2014 



CRIUS ENERGY TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

As at As at 
December 31, December 31, 

Notes 2013 2012 

ASSETS 
Current 
Cash 	and 	cash 	equivalents 	.................................................................................. $15,343 $30,301 
Restricted cash and cash equsvalenrs ................... ..................... .... ...................... - 65 

Collateral 	deposits 	.............................................................................................. 743 984 

Accounts receivable .................................................................................... ........ 	8 75,564 56,197 

Incometax 	receivable ......................................................................................... 2,918 4,864 
Other current financial assets 	............................................................................. 13 20,345 241 

Other 	current assets ..................................................................... ............. ........... .1,909 1,105 

116,822 93,757 

Non-current 
Propertyand 	equipment ... ............ ........................... .....  ....... ..................  ............ .9 2,685 953 

Intangible 	assets ........ ... ............ . .......................................................................... 10 81.175 116,945 

Other 	non-current 	assets 	.................................................................................... 16 175 

Goodwill............................................................................................................ 12 180,866 235,150 

$381,564 $446,980 

LIABILITIES AND TJNrrHOLDERS EQUITY 

Current 
Trade and other payables .................................................................................... $75,454  $49,718 
Creditfacility ...................................................................................................... 11 6,500 - 

DistributionPayable ....... ....................................... ....... ............. .......................... 15 773 1,327 

Other current financial liabilities 	....................................................................... 13  2,610 

82,727 53,655 

Non-current 
Defened 	tax 	liabilities 	........................................................................................ 14 27,776 41,462 
Other non-current liabilities ................................................................................ 13 1,744 1,519 

Unit-based compensation ............................. ....................................................... 18 228 

Non-controlling intere.st...... ........ .............. ....... .............. ... .................................. 13 138,234 258,611 

250,709 355,247 

Unitholders’ Equity 
Trustcapital 	....................................................................................................... 15 90,402 90,300 

Accumulated earnings ............ .................. ........................... ...  ..... ................  ....... 51,430 2,760 

Accumulated 	distributions ................................................................................. 15 (10,977) (1,327) 

Total 	Unitholders’ 	Equity ....................... .................... ......................... ....... ......... ..130,855 91,733 

$381,564 $446,980 

Commitments.................... .... ................ .... .........  ..... ...  ........................................ 	23 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated Jinart cial statements. 
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CRLUS ENERGY TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Period 
from inception on 

Year ended 	September 7, 2012 to 
Notes December 31, 2013 	December 31, 2012 

Revenue ............... .... .... ... ........... .............. ................. .............  ............. ... S507,072 $56260 

Costof sales ............................ ..... ........ ............................ ......  ................ .403,724 44,416 

Gross margin ........ ............. ..... ....  ....... ..... ........ ...... ..... ........................... 103.348 11,844 

Expenses 
Sellingexpenses 	....................................... ....... .........................  ---- .------- . 27,959 3,396 
General and administrative expenses ............... ............... ...... ...... .......... 	.. 43.242 4,960 
Unit-based compensation 	....................................................................... 330 - 

Depreciation 	and 	amortization ................................................................ 9, 10 38,353 5,170 

Operatingloss ..................... ................................ .................................... .(6,536) (1,682) 

Other (expenses) income 
Financecosts 	.......................................................................................... (6,02!) (746) 
Goodwill impairment 	..... ........ ....  ....... .....  ....... ..........  ..... ... ... .....  .............. (60,515) - 

Distributions to non-controlling interest 	.............................. .................. (31,168) - 

Change in fair value of derivative instruments ....................................... 13 22,094 (2,386) 

Change in fair value of non-controlling interest.... ................. ......... ....... .13 120,377 4,469 

Income (loss) before income taxes ... .................... ............ ................ ...... 38,231 (345) 

Benefit from income macs .................. ......... .......... .... .......... ....  ............... 	14 (10,439) (3,105) 

Net income and comprehensive income .............................................. . 48,670 $2,760 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CRIUS ENERGY TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from 

inception oii September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except unit amounts) 

Accumulated 
Number of Trust Accumulated Cash 

Notes Trust Units Capital Earnings Distributions Total 

Issued on initial organhzalion - Sept 7, 2012 15 1 50 50 $0 $0 
Repurchase ofini(ial Trust units .......................... 15 (1) - - - - 

Issuance of Trust units.. ........................ ....... ...... 15 10,000,000 99.612 - 99,612 

Trust tent iSSUSOCO costs ...................................... 15 (11.587) (11587) 
Distribution to unitholders.............. 

 ....... .............. 
15 - - - (1327) (1,327) 

Tax benefit related to stock options - 2,275 - - 2,275 

Net income and comprehensive income - 
- 2,760 - 2,760 

Balance at December 31, 2012 ......... ................. 10 , 01) 0,000  $90,300 $2,760 $(1,327) $91,733 

issuance of 1iust units,.� 	 1j,18 	14,924 	102 	- 	 - 	 102 

Distribution to unitholders.............  ........... ........ ...15 	 - 	- 	- 	(9,650) 	(9,650) 

Net income and comprehensive income 	 48.670 	 48,670 

Balance ai December 3l,2013 	 10,014,924 	$90,402 	$51,430 	8(10,977) 	$130,855 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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15 	 - 99 7612 
15 	 - (11,587) 
11 	20,000 - 

11 	(13,500) - 

(5.513) (651) 
(29.029) - 

(10,205) - 

(38,247) 87,374 
(14,958) 30,301 
30,301 - 

$15,343 $30,301 

	

$3,513 	 $651 

	

$327 	$1,579 

CRIUS ENERGY TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Period 
from inception on 

Year ended 	September 7, 2012 
December 31, 	to December 31, 

Notes 	2013 	 2012 

Net inflow (outflow) of cash related to the following activities 

Operating Activities 
Net income and comprehensive income................................................................ 
Add net income items related to financing activities: 

Financecosts ...................................................................................................... 
Distributions to non-controlling interest ........................................................... 

Add (deduct) items not affecting cash 
Depreciation of property and equipment............................................................ 
Goodwillimpairment ........................................................................................ 
Amortization of intangible assets ....................................................................... 
Change in fair value of derivative instruments................................................... 
Change in fair value of non-controlling interest................................................ 
Unit-based compensation ................................................................................... 
Baddebt expense .............................................................................................. 
Non-cash interest.............................................................................................. 
Loss on disposal of assets .................................................................................. 
Provision for income taxes................................................................................. 

Net change in operating assets and liabilities.................................................... 

$48,670 $2,760 

6,021 746 
31,168 - 

9 	 441 42 
12 	60,515 
10 	37,863 5,128 
13 	(22,094) 2,386 
13 	(120,377) (4,469) 
18 	 330 

5,067 64 
(302) (31) 

49 - 

14 	(12,143) - (3,354) 

35,208 3,272 

17 	(8,933) (12,379) 

26,275 (9,107) 

Investing Activities 
Acquisition of Cnus Energy, LLC, net of cash acquired........................................ 7 
Purchase of intangible assets ............................. ..................................................... 10 
Purchase of property and equipment...................................................................... 9 

	

- 	(47,877) 

	

(2,142) 	 (18) 

	

(844) 	 (71) 

	

(2,986) 	(47,966) 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from issuance of Trust units................................................................... 
Trustunits issue costs............................................................................................ 
Credit facility advances.......................................................................................... 
Credit facility repayments.. .............. I ........... ........................... I� .............. I .... 1.11. 

Financecosts ......................................................................................................... 
Distributions to non-controlling interest ................................................................ 

Distributions to unitholders ...................................... ....... ....................................... 

Net cash (outflow) inflow ..................................................................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period.................................................... 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period............................................................. 

Supplemental cash flow information 
Interestpaid............................................................................................................ 
Incometaxes paid................................................................................................... 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CRIUS ENERGY TRUST 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION ON 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2012 TO DECEMBER 31, 2012 

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

1. NATURE AND ORGANIZATION 

Crius Energy Trust (die ’Trust) is an unincorporated, open-ended limited purpose trust established under 
the laws of the Province of Ontario on September 7, 2012. The Trust has been established to provide 
investors with a distribution-producing investment through its acquisition (the Acquisition’) of an 
approximate 268% ownership interest in Crius Energy, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, by its 
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Crius Energy Corporation, concurrently with the sale by the Trust of 
10,000,000 trust units of the Trust at a price of C$10.00 per Unit pursuant to an initial public offering 
(the "Offering") that closed on November 13, 2012, There was no other activity in the Trust from inception 
on September 7, 2012 until the initial public offering was completed on November 13, 2012. 

The Trust is administered by Crius Energy Administrator ("the Administrator"), pursuant to the 
Administration Agreement dated September 7, 2012 between Computershare Trust Company, as Trustee of 
the ’l’rtui and the Administrator. The Board of Directors of the Administrator therefore performs the 
majority of the oversight and governance role for the Trust and has been consolidated. 

The Trust is domiciled at: 3400, One First Canadian Place, P.O. Box 130, 100 King Street West, Toronto, 
Ontario, Canada M5X lA4 

The following is a summary of the entities directly or indirectly wholly owned by the Trust: 

� Crius Energy Holdings Inc., was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) on 
October 23, 2012. The Trust is the sole shareholder of Crius Energy Holdings Inc. Crius Energy 
Holdings Inc. was incorporated for the purpose of forming, acquiring and holding all of the issued and 
outstanding shares in, Crius Energy Corporation. 

� Cri as Energy Corporation was incorporated under the Delaware General Corporation Law on October 
26, 2012. Crius Energy Corporation was incorporated for the purpose of acquiring a controlling 26.8% 
interest in Crius Energy LLC. 

� Crius Energy Commercial Trust was established as an unincorporated open-ended limited purpose trust 
under the laws of the Province of Ontario on November 7, 2012. Crius Energy Commercial Trust was 
established for the purpose of acquiring and holding debt of the Trust’s other subsidiary, Crius Energy 
Corporation, following the closing of the Offering of trust units of the Trust. 

The following are the operating subsidiaries that the Trust, through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary 
Crius Energy Corporation, holds a 26.8% ownership interest in; Crius Energy, LLC, Crius Energy 
Management, LLC, Regional Energy Holdings, Inc., Viridian Energy, LLC, Viridian Energy PA, LLC, 
Viridian Energy NY, LLC, Cincinnati Bell Energy LLC, FairPoint Energy LLC, Viridian Network LLC, 
FIR Energy Services LLC, Public Power, LLC (a CT entity), Public Power LLC (a PA entity), Public 
Power Energy, LLC, Public Power & Utility of NY, Inc., Public Power & Utility of New Jersey, Inc. and 
Public Power & Utility of Maryland, Inc. 

2. OPERATIONS 

The Trust’s business primarily involves the sale of electricity and natural gas to residential and commercial 
customers under variable-priced and fixed-price contracts. The Trust, through its subsidiaries, markets 
electricity and natural gas, and derives its gross margin from the difference between the price at which it 
sells the commodities to its customers and the price at which it purchases the associated volumes from 
its supplier. The ’I’rust, through its subsidiaries, commenced marketing solar products in September 2013. 
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Through its licensed operating subsidiaries, the Trust provides: (i) retail electricity to its customers in the 
Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, Illinois, Massachusetts, Maine, Maryland, New Hampshire, 
New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Rhode Island and Pennsylvania markets; (ii) retail natural gas to its 
customers in the District of Columbia, Indiana, Maryland, New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania and 
Virginia markets; and (ill) markets solar energy products, beginning in September, 2013, in the 
Connecticut, Delaware, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey and New York markets. In addition to the 
states in which it currently operates, its subsidiaries are also licensed, certified, or otherwise qualified by 
applicable state agencies to supply retail natural gas/electricity/solar energy products and services in 
California, 

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Basis of presentation 

The Trust prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB’). 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, the functional currency of the Trust and 
all subsidiaries, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands. The consolidated financial statements 
are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for the accounting for the 
acquisition and for certain financial assets and liabilities which are stated at fair value (Notes 5 and 13). 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the year ended December 31, 2013 with 
comparative data, as applicable, for the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012. 
The opening balance sheet of the Trust on September 7, 2012 consisted of cash of C$10.00 and one trust 
unit with the issue price of 010.00 and there was no other activity until the initial public offering was 
completed on November 13, 2012. 

Principles of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Trust and entities controlled 
by the Trust including subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and include all the 
subsidiaries and entities over which the Trust has power to govern the financial and operating policies for 
and are consolidated from the date of acquisition and control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
that such control ceases. All intercompany balances, income, expenses, and unrealized gains and losses 
resulting from intercompany transactions are eliminated on consolidation. 

Reclassification 

Certain reclassifications have been made in the consolidated statements of financial position and cash flows 
in 2012 to conform to the 2013 presentation. 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash with financial institutions and includes highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. At any time, cash in banks may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are pledged as collateral for energy purchase and other obligations as 
required under the Trusts energy supplier agreement with Macquarie Energy LLC (Note 11). 
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Collateral deposits 

Collateral deposits represent cash which is posted with State regulatory entities, independent system 
operators ("ISO’), local distribution companies ("LDCs"), or other counterparties as collateral for assurance 
bonds, required collateral in order to operate in certain markets, or for other financial assurance programs 
and are classified as current based on the duration and nature of the deposit requirements. 

Accounts receivable 

The Trust delivers electricity and natural gas to its customers through LDCs, many of which guarantee 
amounts due from customers for consumed electricity and natural gas. Accounts receivable primarily 
represents amounts due for electricity and natural gas consumed by customers net of an allowance for 
estimated amounts that will not be collected from customers. 

Credit risk and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Trust primarily operates in LDC markets winch have purchase of receivables ("POR") programs in 
place under which the LDCs assume the credit risk associated with the customer billings. Consequently, in 
these markets, the Trust’s exposure to credit risk concentration is limited primarily to those LDCs that 
collect and remit receivables to the Trust. The Trusts customers are individually insignificant and 
geographically dispersed. The Trust regularly monitors the financial condition of each such LDC and 
currently believes that its susceptibility to an individually significant write-off as a result of concentrations 
of customer accounts receivable with those LDCs is remote. 

In other markets, the Trust operates under either limited recourse FOR or non-FOR programs. In these 
markets, certain receivables are billed and collected by the Trust. The Trust bears the credit risk on these 
accounts and records an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect any losses due to non-
payment by customers. The Trust maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts, which represents 
management’s estimates of losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance based on known troubled 
accounts, historical experience, account aging and other current available information. Based on the factors 
above, the Trust will write off balances when it believes that amounts are no longer collectible and when 
we have exhausted all means to collect these receivables. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, to 
bring the asset to a working condition for its intended use. The commencement date for capitalization of 
costs occurs when the Trust first incurs expenditures for the qualifying assets and undertakes the required 
activities to prepare the assets for their intended use. 

Depreciation commences when the assets are available for use and is recognized on a straight-line basis to 
depreciate the cost of these assets to their estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When significant parts of an item included in 
fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate components of the asset and 
depreciated over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis. 

Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Asset category 	 Depreciation method 	Useful life 

Office furniture and equipment ........................................... Straight line 	 3-5 years 
Computer hardware ............................................................. Straight line 	 3 years 
Leasehold improvements, .......................... ........... ......... ...... 	Straight line 	Shorter of the life of the lease 

or the life of the asset 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and are 
adjusted if appropriate. 
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An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on dc-recognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is 
included in operating results in the period the item is derecognized. 

Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or 
assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item 
to the Trust, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or. if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Trust will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of 
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed including non-controlling interest. Any negative 
difference is recognized as a gain directly in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, if the 
fair values of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest can only be calculated on a provisional 
basis, the business combination is recognized using provisional values. Any adjustments resulting from the 
completion of the measurement process are recognized within twelve months of the date of acquisition. 

Goodwill is considered to have an indefinite useful life and is not amortized, but rather will be tested 
annually for impairment. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, less any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Intangible assets 

intangible assets are initially recognized at fair value with subsequent additions measured at cost and are 
reflected net of any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization 
method and useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least once annually. 
Changes in the expected life or pattern of consumption of future economic benefits are accounted for by 
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as a change in accounting estimate 
and recorded on a prospective basis. The amortization expense related to intangible assets with finite lives 
is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in depreciation and amortization 
expense. 

intangible assets primarily consist of purchased customer relationships, a non-cotiipete agreement, sales 
network, exclusive marketing relationships and computer related software. 

Gains and losses arising from the dc-recognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the asset is dc-recognized. 
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Asset category 
Amortization 

method Useful life 
Customer relauonships.  ..................................... ... ....................... ............... ...Straight line 3 years 
Non-compete agreement ............ . ..................... .... ......................... ................. 	Straight line 2 years 
Salesnetwork .................................................................. ..................... ......... 	Straight line 7 years 
Exclusive marketing relationships................................................................. Straight line 3 years 
Computer software ......... ............... ................ ..------ ............ ......... ...  ................ 	Straight line 3 years 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each statement of financial position date, the Trust reviews the carrying amounts of its finite life non-
financial assets, including property and equipment and intangibles to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. 

For the purposes of reviewing finite life non-financial assets for impairment, asset groups are reviewed at 
their lowest level for which identifiable cash inflows are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets 
or groups of assets. This grouping is referred to as a cash generating unit ("CGU"). If it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the 
asset belongs is tested for impairment. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. An 
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they occur. For assets excluding 
goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Trust estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized 
impairment loss will only be reversed if there will be a change in the assumptions used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the time the impairment loss was recognized. Where impairment 
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the extent that the carrying value of 
the underlying asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, if no impairment had been recognized. Impairment reversals are recognized in profit and loss 
in the period in which they occur. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at December 31 and when circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable 
amount of each CGU to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than 
its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be 
reversed in future periods. 

Trust issuance costs 

The Trust has included all costs incurred related to the initial public offering of die Trust in "trust unit 
issuance costs". Included in these costs are all cash costs related to the filing of the prospectus and the 
initial public offering of the units. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognized to the extent that we determine it is probable that the Trust will be required to 
settle a present obligation (legal or constructive) and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
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Finance costs 

Finance costs are primarily incurred on the Trust’s supplier agreement and are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred (Note 11). 

Contingencies 

A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of an obligation will only he confirmed by future 
events, or where the amount of a present obligation cannot be measured reliably or will likely not result in 
an economic outflow. Contingent assets are only disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. When the economic benefit becomes virtually certain, the asset is no longer contingent and is 
recognized accordingly. 

Unit-based compensation 

The Trust has a Restricted Trust Unit Plan ("RTUP°) and Phantom Unit Rights Plan ("PURP"), both as 
described in Note 18. The Trust uses the fair value method of valuing compensation expense associated 
with the RTUF and PURP. The units issued pursuant to the RTUP, the Restricted Trust Units (RTUs), 
and the PURP, the Phantom Unit Rights ("PUR5"), are not considered equity settled unit-based 
compensation since the lAS 32 "puttable instrument exemption does not extend to unit-based payments 
made by a Trust. Therefore, RTUs and FURs issued subject to the plans are treated similar to cash settled 
unit-based compensation arrangements, with the associated liability being fair-valued at the end of each 
reporting period and the corresponding change to fair value being recognized in the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income. Compensation expense (recovery) is recognized over the vesting period of the 
RTU and PUR grants. The fair value of the RTUs or FURs is estimated and recorded based on the Trust 
unit price at the cud of the period, if a cash payment or issuance of units is made to settle vested RTUs or 
PURs, the difference between the estimated liability and the actual settlement cost will be recognized in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

Income taxes 

The Trust follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred income 
taxes are recognized for the effect of any temporary difference between the carrying amount of an asset or 
liability reported in the consolidated financial statements and its respective tax basis, using substantively 
enacted income tax rates. Deferred income tax balances are adjusted to reflect changes in substantively 
enacted income tax rates expected to apply when assets are realized or liabilities are settled, with 
adjustments being recognized in the period in which the change occurs. Deferred income tax assets are 
recognized to the extent future recovery is probable. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable earnings will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Trust intends to settle on a net basis. 

The Trust is a taxable entity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) (’Tax Act) and is currently taxable only 
on income that is not distributed or distributable to the unitholders. The Trust distributes all of its taxable 
income to its unitholders and expects to continue to distribute all of its taxable income to unitholders. The 
Trust will at no time be a specified investment flow-through entity ("SIT") as defined in the Tax Act. 
Investment restrictions contained in the formation documents provide that the Trust and its subsidiaries will 
only invest in entities that qualify as a "portfolio investment entity" and will not hold any "non-portfolio 
property" or ’taxable Canadian property’, each as defined in the Tax Act. It also qualifies as a "mutual fund 
trust" within the meaning of the Tax Act and will not be subject to the limit on non, residentownership in 
the Tax Act as it will not own any "taxable Canadian property" as defined in the Tax Act. 

Energy sales 

Revenue is recognized based on consumption. Sales of energy are billed based upon information received 
from the local utilities. The billing cycles for customers do not coincide with the accounting periods used 
for financial reporting purposes. Energy that has been consumed by a customer, but not yet billed to that 
customer, is estimated on an accrual basis and included in revenue during the period in which it was 
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consumed. Such estimates are refined in subsequent periods upon obtaining customer billing information 
from the utilities. Changes in these estimates are reflected in revenue in the period they are refined. 

The Trusts operations are seasonal. Electricity consumption is typically highest during the summer months 
(July and August) due to cooling demand and winter months (January and February) due to heating 
demand. Natural gas consumption is typically highest during the months of November through March due 
to heating demand. 

Fee revenue 

Fee revenue primarily consists of sign-up fees and other monthly fees received from the Trust’s 
independent contractor sales associates in the network marketing sales channel. The sign-up fees 
component of fee revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the one year term of the agreement 
with the individual contractor and the monthly fees are recognized on a monthly basis. 

Cost of sales 

Direct energy costs are recognized concurrently with the related energy sales. Direct energy costs include 
the commodity cost of purchased electricity or natural gas, costs associated with energy delivery, fees 
incurred from various energy related service providers, the cost of renewable energy certificates and fees 
and charges from iSOs and LDCs. The Trust estimates and accrues for these fees based on invoices, 
activity levels, preliminary settlements and other available information. Final determination and settlements 
of these charges may take several months following the month of delivery and are adjusted as information 
becomes available. 

Collection of sates tax 

Sales tax is added to customer bills in certain markets served by the Trust. Sales tax collected from 
customers on behalf of governmental entities is recorded on a net basis. Such amounts are excluded from 
the Trusts revenue and are recorded in trade and other payables on the consolidated statements of financial 
position until they are remitted to the appropriate governmental entities. 

Financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Trust becomes a patty to the contractual provisions 
of the financial instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset expire, or if the Trust transfers the control or substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another party. Financial liabilities are derecognized when 
obligations under the contract expire, are discharged or cancelled. 

Financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition of the instrument. Measurement in 
subsequent periods depends on whether the financial instrument has been classified as "fair value through 
profit or loss," "loans and receivables.’ ’available-for-sale," "held-to-maturity" or "financial liabilities 
measured at amortized cost." 

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss are either classified as 
held for trading or financial liabilities measured at fair value with changes in those fair values recognized in 
profit or loss. 

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost are measured at tiruortizecl cost using the effective interest method of amortization. 

All derivative instruments are classified as held for trading. 
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The Trusts financial assets and financial liabilities are classified and measured as follows: 

Asset/Liability Classification Measurement 
Derivative 	contracts .......................................................................... Held for trading Fair value through 

Profit and loss 
Accounts receivable 	......................................................................... Loans and receivables Amortized cost 
Collateral deposits ............... . ...... ..... . ................................................ Loans and receivables Amortized cost 
Trade and 	other payablcs ......... ......................................................... Other financial liabilities Amortized cost 
Supplier payable ............................................................................... Other financial liabilities Amortized Cost 
Non-controlling interest ................. ................................................... Other financial liabilities Fair value through 

Profit and loss 
Other liabilities .............................. ...................... ............................. 	Other financial liabilities Amortized cost 

The Trust has not classified any financial assets as available-for-sale or held to maturity. 

Fair values are determined based on the quoted market values where available from active markets. If the 
financial asset is not traded in an active market, the Trust establishes the fair value through valuation 
techniques taking into account external market inputs where possible. 

Gains and losses on fair value of derivative instruments are recognized in profit and loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

Transaction costs are capitalized to the carrying amount of the instrument and amortized using the effective 
interest method, other than those related to financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and 
loss, which are expensed as incurred. 

Impairment of financial instruments 

Financial assets, other than those classified as fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of 
impainnenL at each period end. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a 
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated 
future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. 

Objective evidence of impairment could include the following: 

� 	Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; 

� 	Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or 

� 	It has become probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization. 

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the 
assets carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial 
assets original effective interest rate. 

The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding trade receivables, is directly reduced by the 
impairment loss. The carrying amount of trade receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. 
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in Profit and loss. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease relates to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
through profit and loss. On the date of impairment reversal, the carrying amount of the financial asset 
cannot exceed its amortized cost had impairment not been recognized. 
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Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
statements of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

Comprehensive income 

The Trust is required to report comprehensive income and its components in the consolidated financial 
statements. The Trust has no items impacting other comprehensive income and, accordingly, the Trust’s net 
income equals comprehensive income. 

New standards and accounting policies adopted 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent 
with those followed in the preparation of the Trust’s prior year consolidated financial statements, except for 
the adoption of new standards and interpretations effective as of January 1, 2013. The Trust applied, for the 
first time, certain standards and amendments on January 1, 2013. 

The IASB amended IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure which clarifies the requirements for the 
offsetting of financial assets and liabilities. IFRS 7 has been applied as of January 1, 2013. MRS 7 requires 
additional disclosures in the Trusts consolidated financial statements, which were incorporated in the 
Financial Instrument Note 13. 

The IASB issued MRS 13 Fair Value Measurement as a single source of guidance for all fair value 
measurements required by 1FRS to reduce the complexity and improve consistency across its application. 
The standard provides a definition of fair value and guidance on how to measure fair value as well as a 
requirement for enhanced disclosures. TFRS 13 has been adopted as of January 1, 2013. The adoption of 
[FRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value nieasurements included in the consolidated financial 
statements, however, has required additional disclosures, which have been incorporated in the Financial 
Instruments Note 13. 

The IASB issued IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements to replace lAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements and SIC 12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. The new consolidation standard 
changes the definition of control so that the same criteria apply to all entities, both operating and special 
purpose entities, to determine control. The revised definition focuses on the need to have both power over 
the investee to direct relevant activities and exposure to variable returns before control is present. The 
standard has been adopted as of January 1, 2013, MRS 10 had no impact on the Trust’s consolidated 
financial statements upon adoption as the culTent consolidation method adheres to this standard. 

The IASB issued MRS 11 Joint Arrangements to replace lAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. The new 
standard defines two types of arrangements: Joint Operations and Joint Ventures. Focus is on the rights and 
obligations of the parties to the joint arrangement, thereby requiring parties to recognize the individual 
assets and liabilities to which they have rights or for which they are responsible, even if the joint 
arrangement operates in a separate legal entity. IFRS 11 has been adopted as of January 1, 2013. LERS 11 
had no impact on the Trust’s consolidated financial statements upon adoption as the Trust and subsidiaries 
are not parties to any joint arrangements. 

The IASB issued IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities to create a comprehensive disclosure 
standard to address the requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates and the reporting 
entity’s involvement with other entities. It also includes the requirements for unconsolidated structured 
entities (i.e, special purpose entities). The standard has been adopted as of January 1, 2013. IFRS 12 had no 
impact on the Trusts consolidated financial statements. 

lAS 19 Employee Benefits amendments, issued in June 2011, changed the accounting for defined benefit 
plans and termination benefits. This standard requires that the changes in defined benefit obligations are 
recognized as they occur, eliminating the corridor approach and accelerating the recognition of past service 
costs. The changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets are to be disaggregated into three 
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components: service costs, net interest on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets) and renieasurements of 
the net defined benefit liabilities (assets). This standard is to be applied for accounting periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of the amendments to lAS 19 did not have an impact on the Trust’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

lAS 36 Impairment of Assets was amended by the IASB in May 2013. The amendments require the 
disclosure of the recoverable amount of impaired assets when an impairment loss has been recognized or 
reversed during the period and additional disclosures about the measurement of the recoverable amount of 
impaired assets when the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal, including the 
discount rate when a present value technique is used to measure the recoverable amount. The amendments 
to lAS 36 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, however, the Trust has 
early adopted this amendment during 2013 (Note 12). 

Several other new amendments and annual improvements including IFRIC Interpretation 20, Amendments 
to IFRS 1 and Annual Improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 Cycle apply for the first time in 2013; however, 
they do not impact the. consolidated financial statements of the Trust. 

5. 	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of these consolidated financial 1atements iequires the use of judgments, estimates and 
assumptions to be made in applying accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and 
the reported income and expenses during the reporting period. 

Judgment is commonly used in determining whether a balance or transaction should he recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements and estimates and assumptions are more commonly used in determining 
the measurement of recognized transactions and balances. However, judgment and estimates are often 
interrelated. As the basis for itsjudgments, management uses estimates and related assumptions which are 
based on previous experience and various commercial, economic and other factors that are considered 
reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised. Actual outcomes may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. 

Judgments, made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant impact on the 
consolidated financial statements relate to the following: 

Revenue recognition 

Accounts receivable includes an unbilled receivables component, representing the amount of energy 
consumed by customers as at the end of the period but not yet billed. Unbihled receivables are estimated by 
the Trust based on the number of units of energy consumed but not yet billed, based on estimates using 
usage data available, multiplied by the current customer average sales price per unit. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Trust reviews its accounts receivables at each reporting date to assess whether an allowance needs to 
be provided to reflect estimated amounts that will not be collected from customers. In particular, judgment 
by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of collectability of accounts 
receivable, based on financial conditions, the aging of the receivables, customer and industry 
concentrations, the Current, business environment and historical experience. These estimates are based on 
assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to 
the allowance. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Determining the fair value of derivative instruments requires judgment and is based on market prices or 
managements best estimates if there is no market and/or if the market is illiquid. Where the fair value of 
financial instruments recorded cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation 
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techniques including making internally generated adjustments to quoted prices in observable markets. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgment includes consideration of inputs 
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility of the underlying commodity price. Changes in assumptions 
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

In assessing the recoverable amount of intangible assets or non-financial assets for potential impairment, 
the Company evaluates value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. Its doing so, assumptions are made 
regarding the market capitalization of the Trust, recent market transactions or other market 
indicators, future cash flows, including the discount rate to be used to calculate the present value of those 
cash flows. These calculations require the use of estimates. If these estimates change in the future, the Trust 
may be required to record impairment charges related to intangible assets. The key assumptions used are 
further explained at Note 12. 

Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets 

The amortization method and useful lives reflect the pattern in which management expects the asset’s future 
economic benefits to be consumed by the Trust. 

Acquisition accounting 

Management uses judgment to determine whether an acquisition qualifies as an asset acquisition or a 
business combination by reviewing inputs, processes, and outputs within a transaction. All identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value 
on the date of acquisition. Estimates are used to calculate the fair value of these assets and liabilities as at 
the date of acquisition. 

Classification of Trust units as equity 

Trust units issued by the Trust give the holder the right to put the units back to the issuer in exchange for 

cash. lAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation establishes the general principle that an instrument which 
gives the holder the right to put the instrument back to the issuer for cash should be classified as a financial 
liability, unless such instrument has all of the features and meets the conditions of the lAS 32 "puttable 
instrument exemption’. If these "puttable instrument exemption" criteria are met, the instrument is 
classified as equity. The Trust has examined the tenns and conditions of its Trust Indenture and classifies 
its outstanding Trust units as equity because the Trust units meet the "puttable instrument exemption" 
criteria as there is no contractual obligation to distribute cash. 

Consolidation of Entities in which the Trust has less than majority of ownership interest 

The Trust has determined that it controls the operating subsidiaries through its indirect wholly owned 
subsidiary, Crius Energy Corporation, notwithstanding that its ownership interest is less than 50% of the 
voting interest. The factors the Trust considered in this determination include the relative size and 
dispersion of holdings by other shareholders, the Trust’s right to a majority of Board Members and the 
sharing of key management positions between the entities. 

6. 	FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

Recent accounting pronouncements that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the 
Trusts consolidated financial statements are listed below. 

The IASB issued MRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classifications and Measurements as the first step in its 

project to replace lAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. MRS 9 retains but 
simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measurement categories for financial 
assets: amortized cost and fair value. The basis of classification depends on an entity’s business model and 
the contractual cash flows of the financial asset. Classification is made at the time the financial asset is 

- 17 - 



initially recognized, namely when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

In November 2013, the IASB issued an amended version of IFRS 9 Financial instruments which includes 
the new hedge accounting requirements and some related amendments to lAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and MRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. IFRS 9 does not yet have a 
mandatory effective date. The Trust has not yet assessed the impact of the standard or determined whether 
it will adopt the standard early. 

The IASB reissued lAS 27 Separate Financial Statements to reflect the change as the consolidation 
guidance has recently been included in MRS 10. In addition, lAS 27 will now only prescribe the accounting 
and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when the Trust 
prepares separate financial statements. IFRS 27 is effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2013. 
These amendments will have no impact on the Trust’s consolidated financial statements. 

The IASB amended lAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures as a consequence of the issue of 
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and MRS 12. lAS 28 has been amended and will further provide the accounting 
guidance for investments in associates and will set out the requirements for the application of the equity 
method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures This standard will he applied by 
the Trust when there is joint control or significant influence over an investee. Significant influence is the 
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not include 
control or joint control of those policy decisions. When it has been determined that the Trust has an interest 
in a joint venture, the Trust will recognize an investment and will account for it using the equity method in 
accordance with LAS 28. lAS 28 is effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2013. IFRS 28 will 
have no impact on the Trust’s consolidated financial statements on adoption as the Trust has no associates 
or joint ventures that are currently accounted for under the equity method. 

Amendment to lAS 32 Ojjietting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities was issued in December 2011, 
and clarify the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and "simultaneous 
realization and settlement’. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginmng on or after 
January 1, 2014, The Trust does not anticipate that the applications of these amendments will have a 
significant impact on the Trust’s consolidated financial statements. 

lAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement was amended by the IASB in June 2013. The 
amendments clarify that novation of a derivative designated in a hedging relationship to a clearing 
counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations or the introduction of laws or regulations does not 
terminate hedge accounting. The amendments to lAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2014. This amendment is not expected to have an impact on the Trust’s consolidated 
financial statement. 

IFRIC 21 Levies was amended by the IASB in June 2013. IFRIC 21 provides guidance on the accounting 
for levies within the scope of tAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The main 
features of [FRIC 21 are: (i) the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity that 
triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by the legislation, and (ii) the liability to pay a levy is 
recognized progressively if the obligating event occurs over a period of time. MRIC 21 is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. This amendment is not expected to have an impact on 
the Trusts consolidated financial statements. 

7. 	ACQUISITION 

On November 13, 2012 concurrent with the initial public offering of the Trust, the Trust, through its 
indirectly owned subsidiary, Crius Energy Corporation, acquired a 26.8% interest in Thus Energy, LLC. 
This 26.8% interest represents a controlling interest in Crius Energy, LLC due to the governance 
arrangements. This acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The purchase 
price represents the cash paid by Crius Energy Corporation to the non-controlling interest for the 
acquisition of their ownership interests in Crius Energy, LLC at the time of the acquisition. The purchase 
price was paid in full in cash on November 13, 2012 with a portion of the proceeds from the initial public 
offering of the Trust. The Trust allocated the purchase price of $64,125 to the identifiable assets and 
liabilities based on their fair values at the date of acquisition. The assets and liabilities listed in the table 
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below were initially measured at their preliminary fair value on the date of the acquisition. The purchase 
price allocation was considered preliminary, and as a result, was adjusted during the twelve month period 
following the acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3. The following table shows the preliminary allocation 
of fair value together with the adjustments and final fair value: 

Net assets acquired:  Preliminary 	Adjustineilts Final 

Cash 	and cash equivalents .................................. ......................................... 516,248 $16248 
Accounts receivable 	........................................................ ............................ 	 48,472 	(1,280) 47,192 
Trade aud other payables ........................... .................... .......  .......... .... .... ..... (54,565) 	(6,210) (60,775) 
Othernet assets .... ............ ................................. ....... .... ....  ........... ... ......... ..... 	

3,345 3,345 
Customer relationships ................. ....... ........................................................ 76,000 	- 76,000 
Salesnetwork 	......... .............. ..... ...... .......... ....  ........................... ................... 	 19,300 19,300 
Exclusive marketing partnerships ..................... .................................. ......... 	 24,947 	- 24,947 
Non-compete agreements ............................................................................ 1,469 	- 1,469 
Goodwill ........................................................... ....................... .................. .. 235,150 	6,231 241,381 
Deferred 	tax 	liability, 	net .......................... .......... ......... ................. ........ ....... 	 (43,161) 	1,259 (41,902) 

Non-controlling interest .............................. ................................... .............. 	 (263,080)  (263,080) 

Total purchase price $64,125  $64,125 

If the acquisition had occurred at the date of inception on September 7, 2012, the estimate of revenues from 
operations for the prior reporting period is $124,443. The estimate of net income (loss) for the same period 
had the acquisition occurred at the date of inception is impracticable to calculate. 

The goodwill includes benefits such as the value of assembled workforce and synergies which do not meet 
the criteria for recognition as intangible assets under lAS 38. Goodwill that is deductible for income tax 
purposes is $24,556. The deferred tax liability is principally comprised of the tax effect of the amortization 
for tax purposes of the above-mentioned intangible assets acquired. Non-controlling interest represents the 
ownership in Crius Energy, LLC by the non-controlling unit holders and is classified as a liability. The fair 
value of the non-controlling interest is measured principally based on the publicly traded unit price of the 
Trust, with an adjustment for the profit interest units of Crius Energy, LLC that is calculated using an 
option pricing model. The fair value of Accounts receivable acquired was $47,192, and the gross 
contractual accounts receivable was $49,703. 

8. 	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable consist of the following: 

Accounts receivable ......................................................... 

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts .............................. 

As at As at 
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 

$80,548 $56,261 
(4,984) (64) 

$75,564 $56,197 
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

0111cc 
furniture 

Computer 	and 	Leasehold 
2013 	 - 	hardware equipment improvements 	Total 

Cost 
Balance as at December 31, 2012......................................... $232 $252 $511 $995 

Additions.... 	................. .................................. .............. ........ 1 , 651  463 59 2,173 

Balance as at December 31, 2013......................................... 1 ,883  715 570 - 3,168 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at December 3l, 2012......................................... (18) (6) (18) (42) 

Depreciation ......................................................................... (239) (61) (141) (441) 

Balance as at December 31, 2013......................................... (257) (67) (159) (483) 

Net book value - December 31 	2013.................................. $1,626 $648 $411 $2,685 

Additions for 2013 consist predominantly of computer equipment and a new phone system 

Finance leases 

The carrying value of property and equipment held under finance leases as at December 31, 2013 was 
$1,329. Additions during the year include $1,419 of property and equipment under finance leases. Leased 
assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease. 

Office 
furniture 

Computer 	and 	Leasehold 
2012 	hardware equipment improvements Total 

Cost 
Balance as at September 7, 2012 .......................................... $0 $0 $0 $0 

Additions......................................................... ................. .... 232  252 511 995 

Balance as at December 31, 2012.......................................... 232 252 511 - 	 995 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at September 7, 2012 ............................. ...  .......... 	- - - 

Depreciation... ................ --- .......... 	.. 	... 	.. 	... 	........ 	. 	 ....... . 	
(18) (6) (18) (42) 

Balance as at December 31, 2012......................................... (18) (6) (18) (42) 

Net book value - December 31, 2012................................. $214 $246 $493 $953 

Additions in 2012 include the effect of the Crius Energy, LLC acquisition (Note 7) 

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Non- Exclusive 
Computer Customer compete Sales marketing 

2013 software relationships agreements network relationships Total 

Cost 
Balance as at December 31, 2012 $357 $76,000 $1,469 $19,300 $24,947 $122,073 

Additions 	....................... 	... .......... 	...... 	.. 2,056 86 - - 2,142 

Disposals ....... 	... ........... 	.................... 	.... (126) - - - - (126) 

Balance as at December 31, 2013 ... ....... 2,287 76,086 1,469 19,3110 24,947 124,089 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance as at December 31, 2012 (43) (3,511) (98) (367) (1,109) (5,128) 

Amortization- .............................. .......... (226) (25,829) (734) (2,758) (8,316) (37,863) 

Disposals ....................... ........... .............. 27 - - - 

Balance as atDecembee 31. 2013 (192) (29.340) (832) (3,125) (9,425) - (42.914) 

Net book value - December 31, 2013 $2,095 $46,746 $637 $16,176 $15,522 $81,175 
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11. 

During 2013, the Trust, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired approximately 1,200 residential and 
small commercial electric customer accounts in New Hampshire for a purchase price of $86. This 
transaction was accounted for as an asset acquisition. These customer relationships will be amortized over 
their estimated useful life of seven years. 

As at December 31, 2013, the remaining amortization period is less than I year to 6 years. 

Exclusive 
Computer 	Customer 	Non-compete 	Sales 	marketing 

2012 	software 	relationships 	agreements 	network relationships 	Total 

Cost 
Balance as at September 7, 2012 	 $0 	 $0 	$0 	$0 	$0 	 $0 

Additions ............................................
357 	76,000 	- 1,469 - 	19,300 	24.947 	122,073 

Balance as at December 31, 2012 	 357 	76,000 	1,469 	19,300 	24,947 	122,073 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance as at September 7, 2012 	 - 	 - 	- 	- 	- 	- 

Amortization ..................... ......... .... ... .... (43 ) 	(3,511) 	(98) 	(367) 	(1,109) 	(5,128) 

Balance as at Dccc,uhcr3, 2012 	 t43) 	(3,511) 	(98) 	(367) 	(1.109) 	(5.128) 

Net hook vNe December 31, 2012 	$314 	S72,489 	$1,371 	$18,933 	$23,838 	$116,945 

Additions in the period include the effect of the Crius Energy, LLC acquisition (Note 7). 

As at December 31, 2012, the remaining amortization period is 2 to 7 years. 

FINANCING 

Macquarie Energy Supplier Agreement 

In September 2012, Crius Energy, LLC and its operating subsidiaries entered into several agreements 
(the "Supplier Agreement") with Macquarie Energy LLC (’Macquarie Energy") for the exclusive supply of 
the Trust’s wholesale energy needs and commodity hedging requirements for a term ending in October 
2017. Under the Supplier Agreement, Macquarie Energy assumes the responsibility for meeting all the 
credit and collateral requirements with each ISO, and the utilities serving the Trust’s customers are directed 
to remit all customer payments into a designated restricted bank account, (the "Lockbox’), whereby the 
funds in that account are used to pay Macquarie Energy for the energy supplied and other fees and interest 
due under the Supplier Agreement. The trade payables are secured by funds pledged in the Lockbox, 
accounts receivable and all other assets of Crius Energy, LLC. 

Macqciarie Energy extends trade credit to buy wholesale energy supply, with all amounts due being payable 
in the month following delivery of the energy. The credit extended under the Supplier Agreement is limited 
to air overall exposure limit of $200,000 subject to certain standard financial covenants, and limited to a 
calculated credit base based on restricted cash in the Lockbox, billed and unbilled receivables and natural 
gas inventory. Crius Energy. LLC incurs a volumetric fee based on the wholesale energy delivered, which 
is included in finance costs in the statements of comprehensive income. 

The facility includes a working capital facility with a sub-limit of $25,000 under which letters of credit and 
cash advances can be made based on the calculated credit base. Such letters of credit and cash advances 
under this line are subject to an annual interest rate of 5.5% plus LIBOR (0.1646% at December 31, 2013). 

Under this Supplier Agreement, Macquarie Energy had extended trade credit totaling $40,630 and $28,115 
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There were letters of credit issued totaling $5,330 and 
$4,318 as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and cash advances drawn of $6,500 and $-- under 
the working capital facility as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. During the year ended 
December 31, 2013, total energy purchases totaled $382,521 and interest expense under the supplier 
agreement totaled $5,577, whereas during the period from inception at September 7, 2012 to December 31, 
2012, total energy purchases totaled $42,554 and interest expense under the supplier agreement totaled $61. 
The aggregate availability under the credit facility was $12,187 and $12,683 as at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 
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12. 

13. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2013 and effective on February 7, 2014, the Trust executed an amendment to 
the Supplier Agreement. With the execution of this agreement, the sub-limit of the working capital facility 
was increased to $60000, the unused portion of the overall exposure limit was decreased to $150,000, the 
base fee of 5.5% plus LIBOR remains unchanged with an incremental interest rate of 1.25% applied to 
borrowings above a certain threshold and the term of the facility was extended to December 2019, In 
addition, a one-time payment in the amount of $1,250 was made to Macquarie Energy and will be 
amortized over the life of the extended agreement. The Trust also issued Macquarie Energy 750,000 
warrants to purchase Trust units with a strike price of C$6.23 per unit and a term of five years, with the 
warrants being exercisable over a four-year schedule. 

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 

As at 	 As at 

Goodwill 	 December 31, 2013 	December 31, 2012 
Goodwill at the beginning of period .......................... ... .................... 	 $235,150 

Goodwill recognized related to acquisition of Crius Energy LLC 	 6,231 	 235,150 

Goodwill impairment .... .......... ....................... . ............................. ... .(60,515) 	 - 

Goodwill at the end of period .................................................... .... ... 	.$180,866 	$235,150 

Goodwill acquired through a business combination has been allocated to a single CGU, as the Trust 
operates under a single segment. The Trust performed its annual impairment test as at December 31, 2013. 
The Trust considered the relationship between its market capitalization and its carrying value, among other 
factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. As at December 31, 2013, the market capitalization 
of the Trust was below the carrying value of its equity, indicating that a potential impairment of goodwill 
exists. The recoverable amount as at December 31, 2013 has been determined based on a fair value less 
cost of disposal calculation using the market capitalization of the Trust units plus an estimated acquisition 
premium. The recoverable amount is classified a Level 2 in the FV hierarchy. As a result, a non-cash 
goodwill impairment charge of $60,515 is recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income. The principal sensitivity of the fair value less cost of disposal calculation is the Trust unit price. 
Further reductions in the Trust unit price may result in additional impairment of goodwill in subsequent 
reporting periods. The impairment charge will nor impact our normal business operations nor will it affect 
liquidity, cash flows from operations or financial covenants under our credit facility. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair value 

Fair value is the estimated amount that the Trust would pay or receive to dispose of financial instruments in 
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act. 
Management has estimated the fair value of financial instruments using a method that employs market 
forward curves that are either directly sourced from third parties or are developed internally based on third 
party market data. These curves can be volatile thus leading to volatility in the mark to market with no 
impact to cash flows. To the extent the Trust has derivative instruments that are either not traded directly on 
an exchange or there is no published market data available, Management uses a valuation based on actual 
historical data on certain spreads to adjust forward published market prices to arrive at a forward curve. 
The fair value of the non-controlling interest is measured principally based on the publicly traded unit price 
of the Trust, with an adjustment for the profit interest units of Ciius Energy, LLC that is calculated using an 
Option pricing model. The fair value of the unit based compensation liability is measured by applying the 
publicly traded unit price of the Trust. 

The Trust’s activities expose it to a variety of market risks, principally from fluctuating commodity and 
currency prices. The Trust has established risk management policies and procedures designed to reduce the 
potentially adverse effects of price volatility on operating results and distributions. The Trust’s risk 
management activities include the use of derivative instruments such as options, swaps and forward 
contracts. The Trust maintains commodity and currency price risk management strategies that use 
derivative iustrurneuts, within approved risk tolerances to minimize significant, unanticipated fluctuations 
in earnings or distributions caused by market price volatility. 
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The following table illustrates changes in fair value of derivative instruments related to financial 
instruments classified as held-for-trading and recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income: 

Period from inception 
Year ended on September 7, 2012 

December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2012 

Foreign 	exchange options .............................................. ........ $(669) $(34) 

Fixed-for-hosting electricity swaps ....................... ...... .......... 20,750 (2,023) 
Fixed-for-floating natural gas swaps ..................................... 1,020 (329) 
Physical natural gas forward contracts .................................. (275) - 

Fixed-for-floating natural gas basis swaps ..... .. .................. ... 1 ,268  

Change in fair value of derivative instruments.. ..... . .............. .$22,094 $2,386) 

The following table summarizes the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities classified as held-for- 

trading and recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 

2012: 

Oilier current 	 Other current 
financial assets 	 financial liabilities 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Foreign exchange options ...... ..... 	........................ Sl9l $241 $0 $0 
Fixed-for-floating electricity swaps ..................... i8,488 - - (2,262) 

Fixed-for-floating natural gas swaps 673 - - (348) 

Physical natural gas forward contracts (275) - - - 

Fixed-for-floating natural gas basis swaps .......... 1,268 	_______________ ______________  
$20,345 - $241 $0 $(2,610) 

The following table summarizes the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities classified as held-for- 

trading and recorded as at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

Total 
Notional Remaining Maturity Fixed Fair Notional 
Volume Volume Date Price Value Value 

December 31, 2013 

Fixed-for-floating electricity swaps .......... 1 -35 1,402,719 124 months $22.70 o $18,411 $72,558 
MWh MWIT $87.62 

Fixed-for floatingnatural gas swaps 2,800-263,000 1,378500 1-11 mouths $3.62 to $673 $5,403 
Miobtu Mmbtu $4.01 

Physical natural gas forward contracts ...... 8-11,254 Miubtu 995,441 1 month $3.30(o $(275) $6,052 
Mmbtu $9.40 

Fixcd-foi-floating natural gas basis 5.000-153,000 1,442.000 1-3 months $(_ 11) to $1,261 $1,156 

swaps 	.............. ........................ ... .... ........... Mmbru Mmbtu $1.86 

December 31, 2012 

Fixed-for-floating electricity swaps 1-139 937,016 1-18 $31.10 to $(2,262) $46,593 
MWS MW6 months $89.75 

Fixed-for-floating natural gas swaps ... ..... . 10,000-140,000 992,500 1-3 $3.37 to $(348) $3,678 
Miabtu Mmbtu months $3.94 
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Total 
Notional 	Remaining 	Maturity 	Fixed 

Value 	Volume 	Date 	Price 	Fair Value 

December 31, 2013 
Foreign exchange options .................. US$9,360 US$9,360 1-12 C$1.0695 per 	IJS$191 

CS1C.01I CSl0.011 months US$1 

December 31, 2012 
Foreign exchange options.... ...... ....... US$12,307 US$12,307 1-12 C$0.999 per 	US$241 

C$12,294 C$12,294 months US$1 

The following table summarizes the financial assets and liabilities that are subject to offsets and related 
arrangements and the effect of offsets and arrangements on the amounts recorded in the consolidated 
statements of financial position 

Gross 
Gross Assets 	Liabilities 	Offset 	Net Amount 

December 31.2013 
Commodity contracts 	............................................... $22,980 	$(,826) 	8(2,826) 	820,154 

December 31,2012 
Commodity contracts 	................................................. $3,230 	8(5,840) 	83,230 	S(2,610) 

Fair value ("FV") hierarchy 

Level 1 

The fair value measurements are classified as Level 1 in the FV hierarchy if the fair value is determined 
using quoted, unadjusted market prices. 

Level 2 

Fair value measurements that require inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1, either directly or 
indirectly, are classified as Level 2 in the FV hierarchy. This could include the use of statistical techniques 
to derive the FV curve from observable market prices. However, in order to be classified under Level 2, 
inputs must be substantially observable in the market. Derivative assets and liabilities included in Level 2 
are valued using multiple prices quoted by market participants other than exchanges, industry pooling, 
volatility and other inputs that are derived principally from, or collaboratively by, observable market data. 

Level 3 

Fair value measurements that require unobservable market data or use statistical techniques to derive 
forward curves from observable market clara and unobservable inputs, such as internally developed 
assumptions used in pricing an asset or a liability, for example, an estimate of cash flows used in internally 
developed present value of future cash flows are classified as Level 3 in the FV hierarchy. The Trust’s 
policy is to recognize transfers in and out as at the end of the reporting period. 

When the inputs used to measure fair value fall within more than one level of the hierarchy, the level within 
which the fair value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measure in its entirety. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to 
December 31, 2012 there were no transfers between levels. 
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The following table illustrates the classification of financial assets and liabilities in the FV hierarchy as at 
December 31, 2013: 

Recurring Measurements Level 1 	Level 2 Level 3 	Total 
Financial assets 
Other current financial assets ..........................................................  $17,645 $2,700 	$20,345 

Financial liabilities 
Unit-based compensation ................................................................ $(228) 	8� 8� 	$(228) 
Non-controlling interest................................................................... - 	 � (138,234) 	(138,234) 

The following table illustrates the classification of financial assets and liabilities in the FV hierarchy as at 

December 31, 2012: 

Recurrin2 Measurements Level 1 	Level 2 Level 3 	Total 

Financial assets 
Other current financial assela 	......................... ................................. 8� 	$241 8� 	$241 

Financial liabilities 
Other current financial liabilities ................................................ ..... 	$� 	8(2,610) $� 	$(2,610) 
Non-controlling interest ............................ . ............ . .... ... ... ............ ...� 	- (258,611) 	(258,611) 

The following tables illustrate the changes in net fair value classified as Level 3 in the FV hierarchy: 

As at As at 

Non-controlling interest December 31, 2013 - December 31, 2012 
Liability at the beginning of period ................................................ .8258,61! $263,080 

Changes in fair value of non-controlling interest ..... ....... ...... . ...... ... (120,377) (4,469) 

Liability at the cad of period ............................................................ $138,234 $258,611 

As at 	 As at 

Other current financial assets 	 December 31, 2013 	December 31, 2012 
Asset at the beginning of period ...... ............................................... . $0 	 8-  
Purchases .................................................................................... ..... 	.2,700  

Asset at the end of period .......................................................... .......$2,700 	 $0 

The above Other current financial assets classified as level 3 include certain structured financial electricity 

swaps. 

Classification of financial assets and liabilities 

As at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the carrying amounts of the financial assets and 
liabilities, except for derivative assets and liabilities, unit-based compensation liability and non-controlling 
interest, approximated their fair value due to the short-term nature of these items. The derivative assets and 
liabilities, unit-based compensation liability and non-controlling interest are recorded at fair value. 

Management of risks arising from financial instruments 

The risks associated with the Trust’s financial instruments are as follows: 

Market nick 

Market risk is the potential loss that may be incurred as a result of changes in the market or fair value of a 
particular instrument or commodity. Components of market risk to which the Trust is exposed are 
discussed below. 
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Commocliry price risk 

The Trust is exposed to market risks associated with commodity prices and market volatility where 
estimated customer requirements do not match actual customer requirements. Management actively 
monitors these positions on a daily basis in accordance with its Risk Management Policy. This policy sets 
out a variety of limits, most importantly thresholds for open positions in the electricity and natural gas 
portfolios. The Trust’s exposure to market risk is affected by a number of factors, including accuracy of 
estimation of customer commodity requirements, commodity prices, volatility and liquidity of markets. The 
Trust enters into derivative instruments in order to manage exposures to changes in commodity prices. The 
inability or failure of the Trust to manage and monitor the above market risks could have a material adverse 
effect on the operations and cash flow of the Trust. 

The fair values of the Trust’s financial instruments are significantly influenced by the variability of forward 
spot prices for electricity and natural gas. Period to period changes in forward spot prices could cause 
significant changes in the mark to market valuation ("MTM Valuation’) of these contracts, as shown 
below: 

Fixed-for-floating electricity swaps 
Percent change 	 Dollar change 

in MTM Valuation 	 in MTM Valuation 

Percentage change in the 
forward spot price 	 2013 	 2012 	 2013 	 2012 

+1-1% 	 +1-4.92% 	+1-19.6% 	+1-8910 	+/-8443 
+1-5% 	 +/- 24.62% 	+/-98.0% 	+I� S4,552 	+/� $2,217 

+1� 10% 	 +1-49.25% 	+/-196.0% 	+/�$9,105 	+/� $4,433 

- 	 Fixed-for-ho; sting natural gas swaps 
Percent change 
	 Dollar change 

in MTM Valuation 	- 	in MTM Valuation 

Percentage change in the 
forwardspot price 	 2013 	 2012 

	
2013 	 2012 

+1-1% 	 +/-9.03% 	+1-7.7% 
+/-5% 	 +1-45.17% 	+1-28.4% 

	
+/-8304 	+1-8101 

11� 10% 	 +/-90.34% 	 54.2% 
	

+/-8608 

Physical natural gas forward contracts 
Percent change 	 Dollar change 

inMTMValuation 	 in MTI\4Valuation 

Percentage change in the 
forwardspotprice 	 2013 	 2012 	 2013 	 2012 

	

+/-21.00% 	 +/�$58 	 - 
+1-5 17o 	 +1� 104.98% 	 - 	 $289 	 - 

+1� 10% 	 +/-209.96% 	 - 	 +/�$578 	 - 

Fixed-for-floating natural gas basis swaps 
Percent change 	 Dollar change 

In MTM Valuation 	 in MTM Valuation 

Percentage change in the 
forward spot price 	 2013 	 2012 	 2013 	 2012 

+1-1% 	 +/-1.91% 	- 	 +/-824 
+1-5% 	 +1-9.56% 	 +/�WI 

	

+/-19.12% 	 +1-8242 

Interest rate risk 

The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on certain advances within the Supplier Agreement with 
Macquarie Energy, The Trust has letters of credit and cash advances outstanding of $11,830 and $4,318 as 
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at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, under this facility, and therefore is exposed to interest rate 
risk The Trust’s current exposure to interest rate risk does not economically warrant the use of derivative 
instruments and the Trust does not currently believe that it is exposed to material interest rate risk. During 
the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 
2012 the impact of a 1% increase (decrease) in the interest rate on these balances would have not had a 
material impact on Finance costs in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Trust is exposed to currency rate risk in that its business operations are conducted in United States 
dollars, however, its distributions and publicly listed units are denominated in Canadian dollars. The Trust’s 
policy is to mitigate its exposure to currency rate movements by entering into currency derivative hedging 
products including options. Period to period changes in forward spot prices could cause significant changes 
in the mark to market valuation (’MTM Valuation’) of these contracts, as shown below: 

Percent change 
in MTM Valuation 

Percentage change in the 
forward spot price 	 2013 	 2012 

+1- 1% 	 + 31.9%I-26.4% 	+ 36.2%/-29.5% 

+/- 5% 	 + 190.5% I-80.4% + 210.5 11I-81.0% 

+1- 10% 	 + 41.5%1-94.8% + 4536%I-93.9% 

Credit risk 

Dollar change 
in MTM Valuation 

2013 	 2012 

	

I 	+ $87/-$71 

	

+ 33641-$154 	+ $507/-$ 195 

	

– $300l-$181 	+ $1,0931-$226 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation and causes 
financial loss to another party. The Trust is exposed to credit risk in two specific areas: customer credit risk 
and counterparty credit risk. 

Customer credit risk 

The Trust is exposed to customer credit risk and, therefore, credit review and other processes have been 
implemented to perform credit evaluations of customers and manage customer default. Customer credit risk 
exposure represents the risk related to the Trusts accounts receivable from Delaware, District of Columbia, 
Massachusetts, Maine, Maryland, New Hampshire, certain Ohio markets and New Jersey. If a significant 
number of customers in these markets were to default on their payments, it could have a material adverse 
effect on the operations and cash flows of the Trust, 

For the remaining markets, the local distribution companies ("LDCs’) provide collection services and 
assume the risk of any bad debts owing from the Trust’s customers for a fee. Management believes that the 
risk of the LDCs falling to deliver payment to the Trust is minimal. There is no assurance that the LDCs 
that provide these services will continue to do so in the future. 

As at December 31, 2013, the customer credit risk exposure amount of $8,720 (December 31, 2012 
$6,301) and the accounts receivable aging for these markets are as follows: 

Accounts Receivable at 
	

Total 	Current 	30-59 days 	Over 60 days 

December31, 2013 ..................................................... 

	 $S.720 	$3,916 	$1,099 	$3,705 

December31, 2012 ...................................................... 

	 $6,301 	$4,465 	$206 	$1,630 

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows: 

December 31, 2013 	December 31, 2012 

Balance, beginning of year ....... .............................. ..------------ ...  --- .--- ... $64 
Baddebt expense ............................... ........ .... ...... ....... ......... ............... 	 5,067 	 64 

Bad debts wutLen off .......... ......... ...... ....................... ............ ....  ........ 
..(147) 	 - 

Balance, end of year ............................................................................ $4,984 	 $64 

- 
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Counterpart’ credit risk 

Counterparty credit risk represents the loss that the Trust would incur if a counterparty fails to perform 
under its contractual obligations. This risk would manifest itself in the Trust replacing the contracted 
commodities or currencies at prevailing market rates, thus impacting the related financial results. 
Counterparty risk is limited to Macquarie Energy for all wholesale energy supply positions and other 
counterparties for currency derivatives, the failure of a counterparty to meet its contracted obligations 
could have a material adverse effect on the operations and cash flows of the Trust. 

The maximum counterparty credit risk exposure amounted to $20,345 and $241 as at December 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively, representing the risk relating to its derivative financial assets. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the potential inability to meet financial obligations as they fall due. The Trust manages this 
risk by monitoring cash flow forecasts for the next twelve months to ensure adequate and efficient Use of 
cash resources and credit facilities. 

The following are the contractual maturities of the Trust’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2013: 

Carrying Contractual 
amount cash flow 

Trade and other payables $75,118 $75,118 
Operating leases ..... ................. - 1,485 
Financing leases ...................... 1,329 1,329 
Credit facility� ..................... � 6,500 6,500 
Distribution payable 773 773 
Other non-current liabilities 751 549 

$84,471 $85,754 

Less than 1 to 5 	More than 
1 year years 	5 years 
S75.118 - 	 - 

588 897 	- 

336 993 
6,500 - 

773 - 	 - 

- 549 	- 

$83,315 $2,439 	$0 

The following are the contractual maturities of the Trusts financial liabilities as at December 31, 2012: 

Trade and other payables......... 
Operating leases ...................... 
Distribution payable ................ 
Derivative instruments............. 
Other non-current liabilities..... 

Supplier risk 

Carrying Contractual Less than 1 to 5 More than 
amount cash flow 1 year years 5 years 

$49,718 $49,718 849,718 8� 8--- 
2022 652 1,370 - 

1,327 1,327 1,327 - - 

2,610 2,610 2,610 - - 

1 , 519 1,070  1,070 - 

$55,174 $56,747 	- $54,307 $2,440  

The, Trust Trust purchases its energy delivered to its customers through contracts entered into with Macquarie 
Energy. The Trust has an exposure to supplier risk as the ability to continue to deliver energy to its 
customers is reliant upon the ongoing operations of this supplier and its contractual obligations. 
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14. 	INCOME TAXES 

The major components of the provision for income taxes, which relates to the Trusts U.S. subsidiaries, for 
the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 

2012 are: 

	

2013 	 2012 

Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge. ... ................ ...................... ...........  ......................... 	$1,704 	 $249 

Deferred income tax: 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ..... ............. ........... ........... 	(12,143) 	 (3,354) 

Benefit from income taxes ....... ............ ..................................................... ....$(10,439) 	$(3,105) 

Reconciliation of the effective tax rate 

The benefit from income taxes represents an effective tax rate different than the combined U.S. federal and 
state statutory tax rate as follows: 

Period from inception 
Year ended 	on September 7, 2012 

	

December 31, 2013 	to December 31, 2012 

Income (loss) before income taxes .................................................$38,231 	 5(345) 

Federal income tax (at 34.0%)........................................................ 12,999 	 (117) 
State income tax ............................................................................. (97) 	 (439) 

Impact ofpermnanent differences 
Change in fair value of non-controlling interest............................. (40,928) 	 (1,519) 
Goodwill impairment 	........ . ...................................................... ...... 18,481 	 - 

Other permanent items 	................................................................... (894) 	 (1,030) 

Total benefit from income taxes ........ .......................................... ......$(10,439) 	 $(3,105) 

Other permanent items principally represent income of Crius Energy Corporation that is attributed directly 
to the non-controlling unitholders of Crius Energy, LLC. Under United States partnership taxation rules 
Crius Energy. LLC is not a taxable entity and its taxable income / (loss) flows through to its partners who 
are then taxed on their allocable share of the partnership income tax expense I (benefit). 

_29- 



$0 $672 
2.758 337 

235 342 
- 649 

.586 842 
1,684 - 

204 - 

2,324 - 

875 13 

9,666 	 2,855 

(31,485) (44,213) 
- (99) 

(5,863) - 

(94) - 

- (5) 
(37,442) (44,317) 

$(27,776) $(41,462) 

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributed to the following: 

As at December 31, 
2013 	 2012 

Deferred tax assets: 
Change in fair value of derivative instruments........................................ 
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............................................................. 
Interestexpense....................................................................................... 
Depreciation and aniortization ................................ ................................. 
Accrued renewable energy certificates..................................................... 
Accrued commissions .............................................................................. 
Net operating losses - federal and state ................................................... 
Goodwill 
Other........................................................................................................ 

Total deferred tax assets................................................................................. 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Intangibles................................................................................................ 
Goodwill.................................................................................................. 
Change in fair value of derivative instruments......................................... 
Depreciation and amortization ................................................................. 
Other........................................................................................................ 

Total deferred tax liabilities........................................................................... 
Total net deferred tax liabilities.................................................................... 

As at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Trust has tax-effected federal net operating losses 
("NOLs") of approximately $169 and $50, respectively, and state NOLs of approximately $77 and $19. 
respectively. The federal and the state NOLs will expire between 2032 and 2033. 

Movement in deferred tax balances 

2013 	 2012 

Openingbalance ............................................................................................. 	$(41 .462) 
Deferred taxes acquired in a business combination ...... ........ ....... .... ............ ... 1,543 	(44,816) 

Tax income /(expense) dunng the period ................................................... .. 	12,143 	 3,354 

Closing balance at December 31 .......... .... .................................... .... ............ .$(27,776) 	$(41,462) 

15. 	TRUST CAPITAL 

Initial public offering 

On November 2, 2012, the Trust filed a final prospectus relating to the initial public offering of its Units. 
The closing date of this initial public offering was November 13, 2012 and the Trust received gross 
proceeds from the offering of $99,612 and incurred issue costs of $11,587. 

On closing, through an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary, Crius Energy Corporation, the Trust purchased 
an approximate 26.8% ownership interest in Crius Energy, LLC (the "CE Interest") for $88,025, with 
$64,125 being paid to former non-controlling members of Crius Energy, LLC and with $23,900 being 
retained for general corporate purposes and to fund future acquisitions. 

Authorized 

The beneficial interests in the Trust are represented and constituted by one class of units. An unlimited 
number of common voting trust units may be issued pursuant to the Trust Indenture. Each unit represents 
an equal, undivided beneficial interest in the net assets of the Trust, and all units rank equally and ratably 
with all other units. Each unit entitles the holder to one vote at all meetings of uiiitholders. Umtholders are 
entitled to receive non-cumulative distributions from the Trust if, as, and when declared by the Trust. 
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Trust units are redeemable at any time or from time to time on demand by the Unitholders thereof. Upon 
delivery to the Trust, the holder is entitled to receive a price per unit (the ’Redemption Price) equal to the 
lesser of: (i) 90% of the volume-weighted average trading price of a unit during the last 10 consecutive 
trading days; and (ii) 100% of the volume-weighted average trading price of a unit on the redemption date. 
The aggregate Redemption Price payable by the Trust in respect of any units tendered for redemption 
during any month shall be satisfied by cheque drawn on a Canadian chartered bank or trust in lawful money 
of Canada payable to the Unitholders who exercised the right of redemption, on or before the end of the 
calendar month following the calendar month in which the units were tendered for redemption; provided 
that Unitholders shall not be entitled to receive cash upon the redemption of their Units if the total amount 
payable by the Trust in respect of such units and all other units tendered for redemption in the same month 
exceeds $100,000. If a Unitholder is not entitled to receive cash upon the redemption of Units as a result of 
the limitations set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph, then the Redemption Price for each Unit 
tendered for redemption shall be equal to the fair market value of a Unit as determined by the Trustee, in its 
discretion, and shall, subject to all necessary regulatory approvals, be paid and satisfied by way of a 
distribution in specie of Trust Property, other than certain specified Trust assets as determined by the 
Trustee in its discretion. To the extent that the Trust does not hold Trust Property, other than the above 
mentioned specified Trust assets, having a sufficient amount outstanding to effect payment in full of the in 
specie Redemption Price, the Trust may affect such payment by issuing Redemption Notes, being 
unsecured subordinated promissory notes of the Trust. It is anticipated that the redemption right will not be 
the primary mechanism for Uniiholders to dispose of their Units. 

Trust Units Outstanding 

Number of Units $ 

Issuance on initial fonnation - September 7, 2012 ........................................ I 
Repurchase of of initial 	Trust units ............... ......................... ............................ (1) - 

Trust units issued pursuant to public offering 	.............................................. 10,000,000 99,612 
Trust unit issuance costs .......... ...... . ....... . ...................... . ................................ 

- (11,587) 
Tax benefit related to stock options  ................................. .............................. .- 2,275 

Balance at December 31, 2012 ...... .............................................................. 10,000,000 90,300 

Issuance of Trust 	units ..................................................................... .............. .14,924 102 

Balance at December 31, 2013 ...................................... .............................. .10,014,924 $90,402 

On November 13, 2012, as part of the initial public offering, 10 million units were issued at a price of 
C$10.00 per unit, and with these funds, the Trust acquired a 26.8 0/c membership interest in Cnus Energy, 
LLC through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. 

Distributions paid and proposed 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, monthly distributions of C$0.0833 per unit and during the period 
from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31. 2012, a distribution of C$0.1326 per unit were 
declared by the Trust. This amounted to $9,650 and $1,327, which was approved throughout the period by 
the Board of Directors of the Trust and all amounts were paid by January 15, 2014. 

Declared dividends subsequent to year-end 

On January 9, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Trust declared a distribution in the amount of C$0.0833 
per unit. The distribution was paid on February 17, 2014, to shareholders of record at the close of business 
on January 31, 2014. 

On February 10, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Trust declared a distribution in the amount of 
C$0.0583 per unit. The distribution was paid on March 17, 2014, to shareholders of record at the close of 
business on February 28, 2014, 

On March 12, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Trust declared a distribution in the amount of C$0.0583 
per unit. The distribution will be paid on April 15, 2014, to shareholders of record at the close of business 
on March 31, 2014. 
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Offer to Purchase Crius Energy, LLC Units from Excess Cash 

In each fiscal year commencing with the 2019 fiscal year, the Trust is required make an offer (’Liquidating 
Offer"), on or before the 90th day of such fiscal yea, to purchase the maximum number of membership 
units of the non-controlling interest that may be purchased out of Excess Cash (as defined below), at a price 
per unit equal to the Liquidity Offer Purchase Price (as defined below). If, in any year, a Liquidity Offer is 
made by the Trust for all or a portion of the membership units held by the non-controlling interest and any 
non-controlling interest refuses to accept such Liquidity Offer with respect to any of the member’s 
membership units that are subject to the Liquidity Offer (the "Non-Tendered Membership Units’), the Trust 
is not required to make a further Liquidity Offer for any of the member’s Non-Tendered Membership Units 
in any subsequent year. For these purposes, ’Excess Cash" means an amount, as of the end of the 
immediately preceding fiscal year of the Trust, determined by the Trusts board of directors, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, which is not required to he retained in order to permit the Trust to make distributions 
(including future distribudorms) at time then current level of distributions and which is in excess of any other 
reasonable reserves established by the Trust’s board of directors for any proper purpose. The "Liquidity 
Offer Purchase Price" per membership unit means, in respect of a Liquidity Offer made in any fiscal year of 
the Trust, an amount equal to (i) five times the i’rust’s consolidated cash flow for tile iediately 
preceding fiscal yea plus the Trusts cash and cash equivalents on a consolidated basis as of the end of 
such preceding fiscal year, minus the Trust’s debt as of the end of such preceding fiscal year, divided by (ii) 
the number of outstanding membership units as of the date of such Liquidity Offer. 

Right to Acquire Membership Units 

If at any time Cnius Energy Corporation and its affiliates hold more than 80% of the membership units in 
Crius Energy. LLC then outstanding, the Trust has the right, exercisable at its option, to purchase all, but 
not less than all, of the outstanding membership units held by persons other than Crius Energy Corporation 
and its affiliates, at a price per membership unit equal to the greater of (i) the fair market value of the 
membership unit, determined by the Trust’s board of directors in good faith, and (ii) the highest price paid 
by Crius Energy Corporation or any of its affiliates for any membership unit purchased during the 90-day 
period preceding the date notice of the Trust’s intention to exercise its right is mailed. 

Offer to Purchase Membership Units Upon Trust Change of Control 

Within 30 days following the occurrence of a Trust Change of Control (as defined below), the Trust or 
Crius Energy Corporation is required to make an offer to purchase all of the membership units of each non-
controlling interest at a price per membership unit equal to the Change of Control Purchase Price (as 
defined below). For these purposes, a "Trust Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the 
following: (i) the adoption by the Trust of a plan relating to the liquidation or dissolution of the Trust; (ii) 
the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger, consolidation or 
amalgamation) the result of which is that any person becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, 
of more than 50 17c of the Units of the Trust: (iii) the first day ,  on which a majority of the members of the 
board of directors of the Administrator are not continuing directors; or (iv) the first day on which the Trust 
does not own, directly or indirectly through other wholly-owned subsidiaries, all of the outstanding equity 
interests in Crius Energy Corporation. 

The "Change of Control Purchase Price" per membership unit is equal to (i) 6.5 times the Trust’s 
consolidated cash flow for the preceding fiscal year (subject to certain adjustments in the event the Trust 
has made a material acquisition or disposition during that period), plus the amount of the Trust’s cash and 
cash equivalents on a consolidated basis as of the preceding fiscal quarter, minus the amount of debt as of 
the end of the preceding fiscal quarter, divided by (ii) the number of outstanding membership units; 
provided that if the non-controlling interests, in the aggregate, own less than 20% of the outstanding 
membership units, the Change of Control Purchase Price per membership unit shall be the fair market value 
of a membership unit as determined by the Trusts board of directors in good faith. 

Non-controlling interest 

Due to the redeemable nature of the non-controlling interest in Chris Energy, LLC arising from the 
Liquidity Offer and Trust Change of Control provisions outlined above, the non-controlling interest is 
classified as a Non-current liability on the consolidated statements of financial position. This non- 
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16. 

17. 

controlling interest is measured at fair value at the end of each period with the gain or loss being charged to 
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

INCOME PER UNIT 

For the period from 
inception on 

September 7, 2012 
For the year ended to 
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 

Net income and comprehensive income ......................... ....................... 	 S48,670 $2,760 
Weighted average number of units outstanding ........................ ........ ... 	 10,011.081 4,21 0,526 
Basic income (loss) per unit .................................................................. $4.86 ($0.66) 

Net income and comprehensive income ................................................ $48,670 	 $2,760 
Adjust for change in lair value 01 unit based compensation .................. ___ ____________________ 

Adjusted net income and comprehensive income ................. ................. 
848,617 $2,760 

Weighted average number of units outstanding ..................................... 10011,081 4,210,526 
Weighted average number of Restricted Trust Units outstanding 69,074 - 

Diluted weighted average number of units outstanding ......................... . 10.080,155 4,210,526 
Diluted income (loss) per unit ............................................................... $4.82 

(1) Reslncted Trust Units are anti-dilutive to loss per unit for the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 

2012. 

Basic income per unit is calculated by dividing the net income and comprehensive income by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from 
inception on September 7, 202 to December 31, 2012, respectively. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

The inflows (outflows) of net change in operating assets and liabilities, are as follows: 

December 31, 

18. 

Accounts receivable .............................................................................. 
Restrictedcash ....................................................................................... 

Collateral deposits ................................................................................. 

Other current financial assets ................................................................. 

Other current assets .............................................................................. 

Other non-current assets ......................................................................... 

Trade and other payables ....................................................................... 

Other non-current liabilities ................................................................... 

Income tax receivable ............................................................................ 

UNIT BASED COMPENSATION 

Restricted Trust Unit Plan 

2013 2012 
$(24,434) 1(7,789) 

65 (65) 
241 518 

(6 19) 1,092 
(804) 162 
158 - 

15,519 (6,100) 
(763) 1,390 

1,704 (1,587) 
$(8,933) $(12,379) 

Under the Trust’s Restricted Trust Unit Plan (’RTTJP"), restricted trust units ("RTUs") may be granted by 
the board of the Administrator, or an appointed committee thereof (the "RTUP Administrator") to directors. 
officers, employees or direct or indirect service providers ("Participants") of the Trust. The number of Units 
reserved for issuance pursuant to the redemption of RTUs granted tinder the RTUP and pursuant to all other 
security based compensation arrangements of the Trust shall, in the aggregate, not exceed 10% of the 
number of Units then issued and outstanding. If any RTUs are redeemed, the number of Units to which 
such redeemed RTUs relate shall be available for the purpose of granting additional RTUs under the RTIJP. 
In addition, if any RTUs expire or terminate for any reason without having been redeemed, any unissued 
Units to which such RTUs relate shall be available for the purposes of granting additional RTUs under the 
RTUP. The vesting of RTUs is determined by the RTUP Administrator at the time of grant, provided that 
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no vesting conditions shall extend beyond December 20th of the third calendar year following the service 
year in respect of which the RTUs were granted. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable award 
agreement, all RTUs shall vest: (i) one-third on the first anniversary of the date of grant of such RTUs (the 
Grant Date"); (ii) an additional one-third on the second anniversary of the Grant Date; and (iii) the final 

one-third on the third anniversary of the Grant Date. 

At the determination of the RTLTP Administrator, on a date on or before the date which is three calendar 
years following the end of the service year in respect of which the RTUs were granted (the "RTU 
Entitlement Date") the holder will receive, subject to applicable withholding taxes, for each RTU held 
either: (i) the cash equivalent of one Unit; or (ii) at the election of the Trust, one Unit, which may be issued 
from treasury or purchased by a designated broker on the TSX. The detennination of the value of the cash 
equivalent of Units will be determined based upon the volume weighted average trading price of the Units 
on the TSX for the last five trading days prior to the date of calculation. Participant’s RTU account will be 
credited with additional RTUs in respect of any distributions declared by the Trust on the Units that would 
have been paid to the Participant if the RTUs in the Participant’s account were outstanding Units during the 
relevant period. A Participant shall not have the right or be entitled to exercise any voting rights, receive 
distributions or have or be entitled to any other rights as a unitholder of the Trust in respect of any RTUs. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Trust granted 14,924 RTUs for directors and 154,601 RTUs 
to certain members of senior management. The 14,924 RTUs vested immediately and were converted to 
units in April 2013. 84,637, 61,594 and 8,370 RTUs vest on January 1, 2016, August 19, 2016 and October 
15, 2016 respectively, and are being expensed ratably over these periods, in addition, Participants are 
eligible to receive additional RTUs for distributions declared by the Trust that would have been paid to the 
Participants if they were in fact a unit holder. These RTUs will accrue to the account of the Participant and 
vest in the same manner as the related Participants RTUs. As at December 31, 2013, RTUs from 
distributions were 13,152. For the year ended December 31, 2013, unit based compensation of $330 was 
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

The following schedule provides the continuity of the RTUs: 

Number of RTUs 

Asat December 31, 2012 ...... ....................................... ... .............. ................................................. 	 - 

RTIJsissued ................... ..... ......... ......... ......................................... ................................................ .169,525 
RTUsfrom distributions ....................... .............................. .... ....................... .... ..... ............... ......... 13,152 
RTUs converted 10 Units on April 5.2013 ............................ .......................................... ....... ........ . ( 14,924) 

Asat December 31, 2013 ................................................................................................................167,753  

Phantom Unit Plan 

Crius Energy, LLC adopted a cash settled Phantom Unit Right Plan (’PURP") for the benefit of directors, 
officers or employees or direct or indirect service providers of the Crius Energy, LLC resident in the United 
States the (U.S. Participants’). The purpose of the PURF is to provide incentive bonus compensation 
based on the appreciation in value of the Trust units and distributions payable in respect of these units, 
thereby providing additional incentive for continued efforts in promoting the growth and success of the 
Trust and in attracting and retaining management personnel in the United States. The PIJRP mirrors the 
material terms of the RTUP with the exception that Phantom Unit Rights ("PURs’) may only be settled 
with cash payments by Crius Energy, LLC. The PURP allows U.S. Participants to comply with tax and 
securities laws in the United States applicable to the awards. As at December 31, 2013, no PURs have been 
granted under the PURP. 

19. 	GUARANTEES 

Officer and Directors 

Corporate indemnities have been provided by the Trust to all Directors and Officers for various items 
including, but not limited to, all costs to settle suits, or actions due to their association with the Trust, 
subject to certain restrictions. The Trust has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to mitigate 
the costs of any potential lawsuits or actions taken against the Trust. Each indemnity, subject to certain 
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exceptions, applies for so long as the indemnified person is a Director or Officer of the Trust. The 
maximum amount of any potential future payment cannot be reasonably estimated. 

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
RENUMERATION 

Parties are considered to he related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. The definition includes 
subsidiaries and other persons. 

Subsidiaries 

Certain transactions between the Trust and its subsidiaries meet the definition of related party transactions, 
including primarily intercompany notes and administrative service fees amongst its subsidiaries. These 
transactions are eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Key management personnel 

The Trust’s key management personnel and persons connected with them are also considered to be related 
parties for disclosure purposes. Key management personnel are defined as those individuals having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust and is 
comprised of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief 
Operating Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Strategy Officer and the President of Viridian Energy. 

Compensation of key management personnel that is directly attributable to the Trust is as follows: 

For the period 
For the year from inception on 

ended September 7, 2012 
December 31, to December 31, 

2013 2012 
$2194 $549 

597 75 
34 5 

$2,825 $629 

Wages, salaries and employee benefits................................................... 
Directorsfees......................................................................................... 
Post-employment benefits .................................................................... 

Other related party transactions 

21. 

Crius Energy. LLC entered into a transition services agreement for professional services with a related 
party for an initial period of nine months commencing September 2012, with the option to extend the 
agreement for an additional nine months. In March 2013, Crius Energy, LLC gave notice to the related 
party that it would not extend the agreement subsequent to the initial six month term. As at December 31, 
2013, there is $ - (December 31, 2012 - $24) included in Trade and other payables related to this 
agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2013, there is $121 included in General and administrative 
expense related to this agreement. 

Crius Energy, LLC has entered into a Supplier Agreement with Macquarie Energy, which is related to 
Macquarie Americas Corp which is a unitholder in Crius Energy, LLC. Both Macquarie entities are part of 
the same group (Note 11). 

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

For capital management purposes, the Trust considers its capital structure to include unitholders equity, 
non-controlling interest, working capital and availability tinder the Supplier Agreement. The Trusts 
principal objectives in managing capital are: 

ensure sufficient liquidity to adequately fund the ongoing operations of the business 

- 35 - 



� provide flexibility to take advantage of contract and growth opportunities that are expected to provide 
satisfactory returns to unitholders; 

� maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence; 

� provide returns and generate predicable cash flow for distributions to unitholders; 

� 	comply with financial covenants required under its financing arrangements. 

The Trust manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return 
on capital criteria for management. The Trust is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements 
other than standard covenants in the Supplier Agreement (Note 11). As at December 31, 2013 all these 
covenants have been met. 

22. REPORTABLE BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

Operating segments 

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Trust operated in a single operating segment 
and evaluates the performance of the business as a single segment. For comparative purposes, we have 
modified the presentation of the footnotes to the 2012 consolidated financial statements to reflect single 
operating segment reporting. 

Products 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, revenue by product is as follows $475,392 for electricity, $26,599 
for natural gas, $4,126 for fee revenue and $955 for solar revenue. For the period from inception on 
September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012, the revenue by product is as follows: $52,968 for electricity, 
$2,779 for natural gas and $513 for fee revenue. 

Geographic information 

All of the Trust’s revenues from external customers and assets are located its the United States of America. 
[he Tru6t does have any key customers. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the trust operated in 
three states which together comprised 64.7% of revenue, two of which comprise 27.2 17c and 26.7%, 
respectively. For the period from inception on September 7, 201210 December 31, 2012, the Trust operated 
in three states which together comprise 70,9% of revenue, two of which comprised 30.3% and 27.7%, 
respectively. 

23. COMMITMENTS 

Surety bonds 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Trust had surety bonds issued of $8,195 and $7,109, respectively 
to the various state regulatory conunissions and LDCs. 

Operating leases 

The Trust leases its office facilities under non-cancelable operating leases which contain fixed escalation 
clauses and is subject to extension at the option of the Trust. The Trust takes into account escalation clauses 
when determining the amount of future minimum lease payments. All future minimum lease payments are 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term. For the year ended December 31, 2013 
and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012, rent expense under its 
operating leases of $641 and $68, respectively, was incurred. These costs are included in the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income and the associated deferred rent liability is included within other non-
current liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
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Financing leases 

The Trust leases certain property and equipment under non-cancelable financing leases. All future 
minimum lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum ]ease term. For the year 
ended December 31, 2013 and the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 31, 2012, 
depreciation expense under its financing leases of $28 and $0, respectively, were incurred and these costs 
are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the lease liability is included 
within trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities on the consolidated statements of financial 
position. 

Employee defined contribution plan 

The Trust has a 401(k) retirement plan in which substantially all full-time employees may participate. The 
Trust matches employee contributions up to a maximum of 4% of each participant’s annual salary. During 
the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from inception on September 7, 2012 to December 
31, 2012. employer contributions totaled $102 and $15, respectively. 

Regulatory proceedings 

The Trust is an independent energy marketer of retail electricity and natural gas to residential and 
commercial customers across numerous stales. Market rules and regulations locally, regionally and state to 
state change periodically. These changes will likely have an impact on the Trust’s business; some may be 
material and others may not. Some changes may lead to new or enhanced business opportunities, some 
changes may result in a negative impact on the Trust’s business. As such, there is no way to impute an exact 
effect through a cost benefit analysis, because there are many variables. The regulatory process does allow 
for some participation, and the Trust engages in that participation, however, such participation provides no 
assurance as to the outcome of such proceedings. The Trust does not expect proceedings to have a material 
adverse effect on the Trust’s financial condition or results of operations. 

Litigation and other claims 

The Trust is involved in various disputes and litigation. In the opinion of management, the resolution of 
these disputes against the Trust will not have a material effect on the consolidated results of operations, 
cash flows or financial position of the Trust. 

24. 	APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on March 25, 2014 by the Board 
of Directors of the Administrator. 
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FIR ENERGY SERVICES LLC 

EXHIBIT C-4 

"FinancialArrangements," provide copies of the applicant’s financial arrangements to conduct 
competitive retail natural gas supply service (CRNGS) as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, 
bank commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.). 

Please note that FTR Energy Services, LLC’s ("FTR") ultimate parent entity, Crius Energy Trust, a 

publicly-traded Canadian entity traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange, under the ticker symbol 

"KWH.UN" manages FTR’s financial arrangements and has disclosed these financial 

arrangements in a publically available document at the Canadian securities website (SEDAR): 

(the prospectus). Attached as Exhibit C-4 for your 

convenience are pages 60-63 which describe all financial arrangements available at the Crius 

Energy Trust website, http://www.criusenerytrust.ca . 
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i s si-v 	on’ .i 	.ee. 	nnptere ISaLr 	trant fluid- from the Lockbox Accounts into n 
ii of the Rut 2r tilocn ii ii 	in - i -L1UL to Lie-  Lnnkt’nv Accotul 	n’ it- iit (the "(ipccasicg Accoont"i 

it eli: i 	iuvqu:tic In uv a :Oi I.,  iel to cOntelil to r,--c It III of tauh intr fltt ’ pcniieL ,’\onit oa 
Soon at nnsornThlv 	tic:d. hi.t it- nt-  c ot bie- i hji one bis et 1t, 4Wo ,A’X1,g the ru, 

Working Capital facility 

Under the Base Confirnoation Agreement, Macqueue Energy also agreed to advance funds to the Buyer 
Gru,p in r the terms if standby working capital facility (the "Working (Upitol Fa:itlC’t provided that at 
the tim o. funding c (t\ the la Cr - t not subject to an evunt of default rntcntial event of 
default or tn-ito: r"r’ 	dctcnln.l - ii tt 	lite e 	rou’i:nt Ageer-eit and 	iao req Ott 	’- a 

cause the Wurkit’ 	iii hb. tv 	:ue 1 	cl i 	r ik a 	It-tn; : 	n 	-: ti-u 11cr itt- \\ 

Ce7ita 1  Facilin- 	pnyal’n i-in - t-q’J:. I to Li tail-. ol’i a E pci uiiun 

Leiters of Credit 

Pursuant to the Base Confirmation Agreement. Macquarie Energy will issue one or more letters of ci edit 
on behalf of the Buyer Group, provided, among Lather things: (a) any letter of credit issued is for the sole 
purpose of s ’ivtnu the credit reariirenaenLc -;-- u i’ a the Buyer Group by a hCiSL utility, nonPCiE i"itii" 
naturO] ge- pui’ . 	- T natual ta’- in. egn uperalar. tht, 	entid authritv. -;ltn vonuntir-’ii or pubic 

taken.Jh-: aO aav 	Fuc :-w:i 	tat itt- V’ck::’ Capital 
dane nci 	 Ot l..,ir,itiI ndua:i 	0 t-tt-t-tl ’ 	n’,Lct:-L, ,ujl v’ I’: tern’s ut:  

saustui’i..iry to \l ii tiai.e Lcis’ , ; l :’t:::-roi?.l,lu 

To il.: 	tent MiLL1 I 1 Cergy posl collateral to any third patIo ott i-el 5]t’,f  thc buyer Cr in. the B- t. 
Group will enie such II, ’i party returns all such collateral directly .- Maoquar Energy at: :n It 1 loni. 

-. 	tü :a -  he a ti -tnt L- 	fit-el party, k aLILT - 	.ui,i’:icus :l the Buyer Group he permilut to not! - 
I- iii ci 	tuft 	a -c-.: 	Intli- FILL to iltIli .. A’zree.rne.nt to \L- qi ’. Ft-coy a c.ilateral tosu:-fy 
an 	:h;ti’. 0 	-sn 1: 	’ 	ibrn,ni:’ii Aetetiticci 

Scceuriti (oft-net O4iuo4 Vwlrr Baue Co1iflrRtaIon Ji’c yrasU 

The Base Confirmation Agreement arid refrIed agreements grant Mauqi ,C’ 7  Energy a first nt-or Ii’ a - in 

mterest Li eli property and c-nuts (wit. ther real, personal, or mU - C tangibly u intangible) ("(ltaterul ’i of th. 
Buyer Group, indnibac. - Cornpoevb equity securities in tin -ne Earr 1-v Man -teernent, LLC prior and ouperior 

iii t any a tat a --.- io it etnt a lien can be created and peected under the 
Cod - , sot’ a t,, -  no-- p i , 11- t(-(l I r- ’fl. Pt- - cr ,i nci’ rn’’t take all necessary steps to ensure lb 	Macquarie  

lo ii’ 	a I-: FT-’,’:’  - v 	1",-  a’, a a ci all -: Ilit- :’il..N-a1 and to l-1tn: agaiw,i the 
estalthsl It-it 	i 	rd n-air:’ bc_t - 

Notable B pr’-es-erItatiuu,r and c0- uw;rc 

The Base Condrniatnu :\greernunt taut -a-ins customary representations ad covenants In its Flit-i I:iInhe 
relatio, u the - ahiess and operations of the Buyer Group, including in connection with the ownership and 
maim 	-u at assets, regulatory approvals, compliance with laws insurance, taxCs, deli-, n’ of financia; 
inlotnmt. - . inc::’-. 	if t’tdehfdnes Lt,fld the maintenance of certain financial ratios, inc-li,: a: minhawn 
Iota ’ - i t : titl 	ii,l 110111 op,  w 1.-,m I 0’s, - a, 1 as a’ - 	nithic ’npctcnin:’-n rat- rig the abs.’u’ 	.1 any 
even cii’ ’i’t-i,’s ILt- 11-rc cwz 	 J rn5’ 	l -nJ’cr-c tOt-ct It  
Cant 	H -ci tu:: -eii 

 
161f:,11 I J! , 	It t: ’I --1,L a-:-,oi - I 	bc 13 o 	P-it 

Business,  Ope’atLonu --: b-’cified My ’: 

The Buyer Group shall not euler into any business, directly or indirectly, ecu Qt for the sale of retail natural 
gas and electricity in the Specified Markets, certain ancillary services or the prOVlOcJ Of tibet products agreed 

!r t-1 1pinp In 	n. - Enepry, and all services and activities reasonably jelated to the foingoing to the 
CXit-t’ not prolbita. ii i-v 1 -. Bciu Conf’r’r-.sioo Agreeipent and cerith" e’nillar; egrcrnuent Will tL 
Enrtn- ’’Spet d hi, C ’ 	nie’l:s 

 

Per, rsylvar-i :,Cot.n:’ - i-an, ’cl:,r’,’_,-.. 	’t- -s Stt, 	t’.’ 	n’:sv Ill. ti a 
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New Hampshire, Mcirie Rhode I loud, Michigan, Indiana, Califruio, Virginia, Delaware, District of Cc’unbia, 
CAISij , I :5’. 	Lu 	c’i ’fl7 lSt \1 ’c mc each other market in the Unci; States which Macquarie 
Energ Ii 	cc 	r sir- 	aere�’:rr. ,,rrceJ 	’.rc 	cc nc inclusion 	a 	Ff:crkt. 

Risk Managmen P ~~!;( ,.  

The Buyer G :op is required to Cr cc 	with the Risk Management i’nl:Ls Within 60 days prior to each 
anniversary or the effective date of the Ba C onfirmation Agreement, the Brir 	 ctrcd to review 
the Risk Management Policy with .Macquarie Energy and make such changes as i c’ Bur Group and 
Macquarie Energy mutually agree are commercially reasonable based upon the app e:b1e marLt indutcy, 
econom 	rd rsa.nr rorin in 	Iusinrss objeathe’ Furtheimote, the Buyer Group may only o:rc’J Or 
modi - s -nP-H Pin. a "- r’ P In :c’ on a.cV-i 	’i-:rrc of Mequ-arie Energy, 

Djsirja1ons 

Each member of tb l’i’:yer Group is prohibtcnl :nsi: ::takirccs --ny pasirertt  ii Iccocroc our d-s’nhuicc:c Or 
divhi.nicl, to any direct or ciceet equity holder of c’cc niem(, - ic 	tia th it t  ant-ti - i Ocrsi P-c’ o’ 1 l. hover 
Group) tot 	it 	a Permi;i Dtribution. A "Permitted l)ti :hon", follow i c :;ce Coa pany fatten 
Acquisitir L, tonico a "a c:ccc:c made from the Operating Account Lo equity holders of t: Cntnpar, .01 r’c"posea 

of 	-I -cr1 .cn 	oal 	c 	cc 	i 	cv 	rice 	�11,. C:nipany, or (ii) reimb 	lganeqciar lou: Hi 

an’ 	cc-4k:ci pant a L.rc., on occa attnbu;oHc C. ic Buyer Group’s business acti:P:s prortied H,’ :1 
the tj 	of p-cc - mt n’ 	-t’i ac 	"-, cci nmecilm 1  ac a of default cc termination event .hat c-,: awed and 
is cool c He. 

I’:ic7n,cJ, cc DLectors 

’Tttr Buyer Gcu.j is raqrd:iL U encore that following the Company Interest Acquisition, (i) tha 
Company LL.0 Agreement requires (a) the appointmeni of at least three independent directors to the board ol 
directors of the Conv""rn’ (h’i at all times, a rrsajority cit the members of the board of directors or the Company 

N inden�,acjecp ,,c 	j,P (cc Hc :::oi’Lc, ’n vote of all of the independent directors shall be required prior 
I: ,  tju IlIC ,  it ccc’, sail ,00rv rrikr:pie; 1U_0 a j ,.  Iacc::c I 	cia c:r,c:htuttcr’i’ batI a;cat’Vfiling or the Cnccpany 
or any of  ’ , 11: c_[ 	r lc:u cCtiji’vc:li;cc 	act-. 1i L11,it se_i: iaac[JCc.n n cirecicco ate 	rirred ns titer then 
Lb 	If OC t, :i1’[ttoY iccOtical P,c �1Ci,Ilcc:’ [,t t;ietc tiO 	C olircim ac] Hr cccu:Jacad C 	hr 

in1A pacideni :f he or si-. ’c is cal a member o: 	i:c’tc’rneUt acid ccc 111C rctjt-at arc, cm:;-, ,c he h nc I 
direcuicr’; of C o.,,  Company, - ’c;: ft itt any interest and any b - irttt or outer reicac-niec 	wh Ii 
mason.-,NH 

"- i "’-rvis’arl to materially ilk: Ic-re with tfce directur’s ab:IH to act ccc the ’:-ct interest at ’ 

company fcc ;cc:Ic c-j-  ml - CoccI is a director, (ii) is not an owner of any of ’o P ed and outsiandica 
of any memlui oc t. clover U: �i, and (iii) does not awn, directly or imli,r--:c,v as a beneficial hohJ or as a 

a-- or ’r" 	ci. -i Iiul ’i -s hr soy of the issued and outstandii;v 	.rH" of any direct ,:  

pa it nl if tin-  Comptit’ (caeiaPcc-.c an, sc - ;ir.Lc-n hai-.i 	such jdividimri as : ccrcreft- aic- it for st-Oc a, - - 

directo tI r 	- a - - of, p: rid J fit issu"nrc com"’ic- tnt. ten mn corn clv  ns set m’ cit the Boa. Ctirriui cc 

Agreement - ’The Bar- Co’:Prrcrotion :’tgraarrteflt nroviles tinc. tic a ar-cc ti t - tt t’:i ui’ 1 a n-stan c C 

relationship will; any :o-andcec of toe liuvet I  nc’i .....ci ci a - reihi Jr uleccn::ai - t: howe’ ,’c a -’c scan slc,cIl ’’’I 
be deemed to hove, a matenc it I ’ti cr,;c: a Plc any mean-ic: ti Lie LijaCt 6rur rp sac a - vv a result ct - tn-ic persori 
serving as c d:iectm’ of one oc more i:dm::; H - cc ants of’ the Company. 

Mi c:;- 	C :c, 01 

A member of thr 13cr-car (ar- ci -hail i.e 	aim , rnitttHne crime, .iIrltile, liquidate, wind up its affairs, disccrtiva 
itself or hnne itt forc-c c- state :tf c-leaflets ac; a-i-_H bar, c - cc- thint r n’em:cH,-’ of the Buyer Group L ci. 

wit rut taic fin-c cm_ -ac - ofM.in1ccac’: Lti:;-,rs C 	:c :ere, conni 	10, :,c cc:’itc’IHI:,;v cccviI -collier 11 -. 111 cr H ccv 

Li- Vi 	(itriel’ and bc rI,la’t tb 	r.tn-clict°tc a purco;t cipr’h’ COUlC.c, C 	-’mc Ccci  1 pana a’ 1:-z v, 	t;b roe 
ci it c’ saiL a- cr_il-a: rccc - ,t .r it se out a. he Basic (:cnteiiij. :o Agreenteiri. 

The Base Confirmation Agreement provides that any contract or agreement which could result in a change 
cc c’a’nership of ’in" nitaber of ’ic: Buyer Groic, 	cc-°’ncet an event of dc it cc mmccc of 	mr, nthm cattier 

(Ic the sale "a ceririri assail of taiineinnat: Lv;! hattie’. LLC to Chic mc:c:r it-11 IH-o- u i ci -t (P 1 macrI I Pt 
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pursuant to certain existing agreements dsiThd in the Be ConfirmatLcm Agreement; (ii I.--  
Interest A 	’tp (iii changes In owner bp esukr _ from sales of o’aetsh 	nteiesi in 1i Company 
ainoJiz t1wo’ ’ ’ 	’ 	’ 	Compa :: ’,is of tl ,, u C1EIO oil tijt t v.ui 	 ’Lq 1 	u:l (iv ch 	in 
ownership r’ 	_flr I 	k 	ni 	r. a JyJ , 	in ulic 	t 	i 
in Owitel .1 o-, 	. i 1 1r1 	fi 	t 	i 	it 	: 	 ji 	J 	 ( ’I’j. 	n 	( 	’ti 	 , 

1i)T such p 	v 	Y 	!J no 	fl 	\ I 	I C) any 	: ) 	1 	o B i’ 	(n i’ 	i 	a 	oir 
circumstaucS, a change o control izi any momb v f the Bayer C .i 	I tesw itn’ evt 	. 	oi 	I 

the Base Coofniition Agrmmni. 

Term 

	

T1i I 	ifirni it i Apreemnt e 	j 	UDOfl ti 	ii1r of Jtt i L, 201 	L J the date on whioh all 
traracL’o e1jI 	Ot I 	J aCL)JIIIL WI 	fli 	Ifl7ai 	 kII 	term 

Earfv Termination iI,a1( 

	

The Buyor (T-110 1TI , . ,  terizilate the Base Confirmation Agreement at any time upI: 	c. ’ 	ritten noii 
to Macquarie- Energy. Upon cody LermjliaLioO, the Buyer Group muir pay a tenii1OatJn payai qu to the 
eitirnated fees that would have been payable during the remaining tml]l (based on specified volumes of natural 
gas and electricity as set out iii the Base Cunfirmation Aeernent), less the actual fees paid by the Buyer Group 
doting ttie year in wljI the early tcrml ’i :J:cIr. (and aLl otI’r yoas remaining in t1w, o - Il 

Ei’ciit of Deftruls 

In ad 11 to Ui 	i 	 I I 	to iIj&y e the Base Confm i 	I 	’I 	I 	I I lLtrI’ 
covenants of (I - c 8uier 	uo width, A lucactcti, wc,ukl (iubjec to II ZIf 	toe LOIie 	tondi COlittillIc 00 

event of default suth as the taILLc to maintaL a certain mrnuiiutn nt I 	 in pay t’ an 
material third party obligations and ilmitaiinos on the incurrance of debt, exit :totLc  of liens or capital 
expenditures. ’lb,- Base Confirmation Agreement also contains specific events of default, including the 
revocatioi Of lto:ioo: or permXs to marker or sal’ eieclrioi:v or natural gas in Specihed Markers Macquarie 
Energy’s s’r"c 1 Oi p  1 	1 Ii I 	n exceeLn 	cet iC limit or 1, 	lost of key in nagCj 
esupilLyoLIL I tL’icto to cci ton otiro 

	

To the 	A I Vi ii lb Do 	Group and ii ect to an appl siht cnn pet c 1 	IlL II F 

	

cut tOn 	sp I to suetu On pelfttounoe ontci or otni iiL the [hoc Cl 	flfl Ito Agrector 	iit:ltilin0: lito 
supply of enemy in the Buyei Group und he B te I. onfirination Agreement 	h i 	 I 1 
cmil:Ll to acceierat-ay advances under the Working Capital Facility, and to enforce its in; and fureclose on 
the 1 i:i:ril rnirtherniore, if the breach giving rise in the default Cr termination event is willful or deliberate, 

00110 II  oocrc. C :ti:led to enforce all rights and take all actions andet a onwer Of attorney given to it by 
the J 	a 	I I 	 t in like all chops Mccqu r Bni 	to be iemshJn in 

the bu 	os nit] ’Onh 	00 to In COtO ni Odloht tr toim iotl:tn otorti ioL lirt r 	olcth 1 corl 	ttpi 0 

	

tClflIilLi 	ii 	I I I 	it 	I 	I I ofI 	I C 	I 	I 	I 	Ii I 	 tI h 	I I 

Enercy in Ii sole c itoredo 
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FTR ENERGY SERVICES LLC 

EXHIBIT C-5 

"Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of forecasted financial statements 

(balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the applicant’s CRES operation, 

along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, email address, and telephone number 

of the preparer. 

FTR Energy Services, LLC’s forecasted financial Information contain confidential and proprietary 

information and are being submitted under seal. 
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FTR ENERGY SERVICES LLC 

EXHIBIT C-6 

"Credit Rating,"’ provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s credit rating as reported by two 

of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet Information  Services, Fitch 

IBCA, Moody’s investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a similar organization. In instances where 
an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent 

or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement signed by a principal 

officer of the applicant’s parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 

applicant. 

Attached is the Credit Report of FTR Energy Services, LLC from Dun & Bradstreet that shows 

Applicant’s credit rating. 
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Phone: (877)811-7023 

I Obb evasrarigLon bIVO [Ui - I 

Stamford, CT 06901 

UMA S; 

(SUBSIDIARY OF REGIONAL ENERGY 
HOLDINGS, INC., STAMFORD, CT) 

Dun & Bra dstreet 
c:EJ all- ITV Coi.s’ 

Ftr Energy Services, Lc DUNS: 07-030-7263 

Dashboard 

Score Score Class Score Class Rating Recommendation 	Rating 

79 471 4 1442 4 6 $15K 	-- 

--...-.-...........-.-- 	

,H 

04114114 Financial Stress Score 	 04114/14 Delinquency Predictor 
Declined 	 ______ 	 Score Declined 

04/14/14 Financial Stress Class 	 03/23114 Financial Stress Score 
Declined 	 Declined"  

03/19/14 
Finance, Insur ance and Comprehensive Report 
Real Estate 

Transportation, 

08/21113 5boSrsd  Electric, Gas 
Comprehensive Report 

Sanitary Services 

Top 5 Inqrura :iy 	IC 	. lcnihi 



2 	 2 

ir. 
Trido  

U 

3MonthPAYDEXfi 	 79 

7C A 	NA  I  

UndersVi tiUR4 lJy 3or? 

The D&B PAYDEXfi is a unique, dollar weighted indicator of payment performance based on 
payment experiences as reported to D&B by trade references. 
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Tht.pr 	 - 

Score 	 Class 	 Percentile 

471w 4 19% 
Moderate to high risk of severe 

payment delinquency over next 12 

months 

L r 	My IMoft 

The D&B Delinquency Predictor (formerly the Commercial Credit Score) predicts the likelihood that 
a company will pay in a severely delinquent manner (91+ days past term) over the next 12 months, 
seek legal relief from creditors, or cease operations without paying all creditors in full over the next 
12 months based on the information in D&Bs database. A severely delinquent firm is defined as a 
business with at least 10% of its dollars 91 + days slow. 

Incidence of Delinquent Payment: 

Among Companies with this Classification: 	9.40% 

Factors Affecting Your Score: 

Limited number of satisfactory payment experiences 

Higher risk region based on delinquency rates for this region 

Evidence of open liens 

Higher risk industry based on delinquency rates for this industry 

Limited time under present management control 



Limited business activity signals reported in the past 12 months 
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Score 	 Class 	 Nat’l % 

1442’ 4 31% 
Moderate to high risk of severe 

financial stress, such as a 

bankruptcy, over the next 12 months 

Incidence of Financial Stress 

Among Companies with this Classification: 
	

0.84 (84 per l0000) 

Factors Affecting Your Score: 

Low proportion of satisfactory payment experiences to total payment experiences. 

Limited time under present management control 

Unstable Paydex over last 12 months. 

The Financial Stress Class Summary Model predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing business without paying 
all creditors in full, or reorganization or obtaining relief from creditors under state/federal law over the next 12 
months. Scores were calculated using a statistically valid model derived from D&Bs extensive data files. 

Notes: 
� The Financial Stress Class indicates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial 

characteristics of other companies with this classification. It does not mean the firm will necessarily 

experience financial stress. 
� The Incidence of Financial Stress shows the percentage of firms in a given Class that discontinued 

operations over the past year with loss to creditors. The Incidence of Financial Stress - National Average 

represents the national failure rate and is provided for comparative purposes. 
� The Financial Stress National Percentile reflects the relative ranking of a company among all scorable 

companies in D&B’s file. 
� The Financial Stress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and 

Percentile. It is especially helpful to customers using a scorecard approach to determining overall business 

performance. 
� All Financial Stress Class, Percentile, Score and Incidence statistics are based on sample data from 

I Ids - :oIJihf, 12 11ciiiI’ 
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INFRASTRUCTURE 
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U 	 -1--- 

High  risk of supplier experiencing severe 

financial stress over the next 12 months. 

U 

The Supplier Evaluation Risk (SER) Rating predicts the likelihood that a supplier will cease 



business operations or become inactive over the next 12 month period based on the depth of 
predictive data attributes available on the business. The SER Rating scoring system uses statistical 
probabilities to classify public and private companies into a 1-9 risk rating, where 1 represents low 
risk and 9 represents high risk. 

Factors Affecting This Company’s Score: 

Limited time under present management control 

Higher risk industry based on inactive rate for this industry 

Proportion of slow payment experiences to total number of payment experiences reported 

Evidence of open liens 
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Conservative Credit Limit 

Risk Category 	 $lSk 

3 	Aggressive Credit Lint 

$35k 

Moderate 

L1fld1.tiSldfldiflr1 lvkt 

D&B’s Credit Limit Recomtneridation is intended to help you more easily manage your credit decisions. It provides 

two recommended dollar guidelines: 

A conservative limit, which suggests a dollar benchmark if your policy is to extend less credit to minimize risk. 

An aggressive limit, which suggests a dollar benchmark if your policy is to extend more credit with potentially more 

risk. 

The dollar guideline amounts are based on a historical analysis of credit demand of customers in D&B’s U.S. 

payments database which have a similar profile to your business. 



Rating 

Alt 

1R3 	 2012-06-22 

Understanding My Score 

Factors Affecting Your Score 

# of Employees Total: 32 

Payment Activity (based on 7 experiences): 

Average High Credit: $10,900 

Highest Credit: 	$40,000 

Total Highest Credit: 	$43,850 

Note: The Worth amount in this section may have been adjusted by D&B to reflect 
typical deductions, such as certain intangible assets 

inquiries 
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Report 	 j and Sanitary Services 
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Payments 	 Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

- 	
- 

iieicn 

Delinquency Predictor Scoring Report 0 	 0 0 

err:ff iiuon eel elEe– 	 U 

Manufacturing 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

re 	 1 	 1 

Services 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

Wholesale Trade 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

Current 	 79 	Equal to 2 days beyond terms 

PAYDEXfi: 

Industry Median: 	77 	EqLal to 5 DAYS BEYOND terms 

Payment Trend: 	 Uricl:anged, compared to payments three months ago 

Total payment Experiences in D&Bs File (HQ): 	7 

Payments Within Terms (not dollar weighted): 	SB 

Total Placed For Collection: 	 NA 

Average Highest Credit: 	 10,900 

Largest High Credit: 	 40,000 

Highest Now Owing: 	 NA 

Highest Past Due: 	 NA 

0 

0 

0 



Top rid 	tree 

Nonclassified 2 $41000 $40,000 	100% 	0 	0 	0 	0 

c 	 ... 	- 

Lithographic printing $100 $100 	100% 	0 	0 	0 	0 

Oho £enOO 

Cash experiences 2 $200 $100 

Unfavorable comments 0 $0 $0 	-- 	-- 	-- 	-- 	-- 

nl,icClr r’r 	rv,r 	,.’lh 

Other 0 N/A $0 

Total (Last 12 Months): 	7 

I 0 Pol 

o:o..r..w:: 

II 

11/2012 	Ppt 	 $40,000 	 $0 	$0 -- 	 2-3 mos 

08/2012 	(006) 	 $100 	 -- 	-- Cash account 	1 me 

III 

Indications of slowness can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. Accounts are sometimes placed in 

collection even though the existence or amount of debt Is disputed. 

The public record items contained in this report may have been paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to the date this report was 

printed. 

History & Operations 	 Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

Company Name: 	 FTR ENERGY 	 URL: 	 www.viridian.com  



SERVICES, LLC Stock Symbol: NA 

Doing Business As: (SUBSIDIARY OF History: NA 

REGIONAL ENERGY Operations: NA 

HOLDINGS, INC., Present Management Control: NA 

STAMFORD, CT) Annual Sales: NA 

Street Address: 1055 Washington Blvd 

7th Fl 

Stamford, CT 06901 

Phone: (877)811-7023 

Fax: NA 

The following information was reported: 0412312014 

Officer(s): 
MICHAEL FALLQUIST, MNG MBR-CEO 

ROOP BHULLAR, MBR-CFO 

CAMI BOEHME, MBR-CSO 
CHAITU PARIKH, M8R-COO 
BARBARA CLAY, V PRES & GEN COUNSEL 
CHRISTIAN MCARTHUR, EXEC VP OF PRICING, PRODUCT & ENGINEERING 

The Nevada Secretary of State’s business registrations file showed that FTR Energy Services, LLC was registered as a Limited Lieblilty 

Company on July 15 2011. 

Business started 2011. 
MICHAEL FALLQUIST. 2009-present active here. 2008-2009 Commerce Energy, Inc. (AMEX: EGR), as COO. 2004-2008 Macquarie 

Bank Limited as Senior Manager, Energy Markets Division. 2003 Deloitte Consulting as Senior Consultant, Strategy & Operations. 

1999-2002 Towers Perrin as Senior Associate, Strategy & Organization. 
ROOP EHULLAft 2010-presCnt active here, Aug 2008-2010 Commerce Energy as Director of Finance. Oct 20U3-Aug 2006 King 
Country Energy as Finance Manager/Controller Feb 1998-Sep 2003 Deloitte asTax Manager, Senior Tax Consultant, Tax Consultant. 

CAMI BOEHME. 21110-present active here. Mar 2010-Sep 2010 Utah State University, Huntsman School of Business as Associate 

Director of Marketing. Sep 2009-Sep 2010 Advent Creative Partner as Brand Director, Aug 1998-Sep 2009 Digital Slant as Founder, 

President and Brand Director, 
CHAITU PARIKH. 2013-present active here. 2011-2012 Mxenergy Inc., a Constellation Company, President & CEO. 20022011 

MXenergy Inc. ($700 million business serving over 500,000 customers with natural gas and electricity), EVP & CPO. 20012002 The 
New Power Company ($350 million + NYSE listed company) Vice President & Corporate Controller. 19992001 AES Power Direct, LLC 

& Titan Energy, Inc, CEO & Vice President, Finance, 
BARBARA CLAY. 2012-present active here. Feb 2007-Oct 2012 MasterCard Worldwide, Vice President, Counsel. 199-2007 Boies, 

Schiller & Elexner, LLP, Counsel. 
CHRISTIAN MCARTHUR. 2014-present active here. Jul 2003-Mar 2013 Just Energy as Senior Vice President, Supply Operations. 

Business address has changed from 64 N Main St, Norwalk, CT, 06884 to 1055 Washington Blvd 7th Fl, Stamford, CT, 06901. 

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL SOURCE AS 

OF 
APRIL 30 2014. 

Registered Name: 

Business Type: 

Corporation Type: 

Date Incorporated: 

State of Incorporation 

Filing Date: 

FilingFedlD: 

Registration ID: 

Duration: 

FTR ENERGY SERVICES, LLC 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NEVADA 

Jul 152011 

NA 

E040147201 1-7 

NA 



Duration Date: 

Status: 

Status Attained Date: 

Where Filed: 

Registered Agent: 

Agent Appointed: 

AgentStatus: 

Principals: 

NA 

ACTIVE 

Oct 192011 

CORPORATION Dlv, CARSON CITY, NV 

NATIONAL REGISTERED AGENTS, INC. OF NV, 311 S DIVISION ST, 

CARSON CITY, NV, 897030000 

NA 

NA 

REGIONAL ENERGY HOLDINGS, INC., MEMBER, 1 055 WASHINGTON 

BLVD., STAMFORD, CT, 069010000 

Description: 
Subsidiary of Regional Energy Holdings, Inc., Stamford, CT. 

Provides electric services, specializing in power transmission. Provides natural gas transmission. 

Terms are Net 15 days. Sells to general public, commercial concerns. Territory United States. 

Employees: 32. 

Facilities: Occupies premises in a building. 

Location: NA 

Branches: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

SIC: 
Based on information in our file, D&B has assigned this company an extended 8-digit SIC. D&B’s use of 8-digit SICs 

enables us to be more specific to a company’s operations that if we use the standard 4-digit code.The 4-digit SIC 
numbers link to the description on the Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) Web site, Links open in 

a new browser window. 

4911 9903 Transmission, electric power 

4922 0000 Natural gas transmission 

NAICS: 
221121 Electric Bulk Power Transmission and Control 

486210 Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas 

Public Filings 	 Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise Indicated 



Judgments 
	

0 	 - 

Suits 	 B 

The following Public Filing data is for information purposes only and is not the official record. 

Certified copies can only be obtained from the official source. 

JUdgments 
We currently don’t have enough data to display this section. 

A lien holder can file the same lien in more than one filing location. The appearance 01 multiple liens filed by the same lien holder against 

a debtor may be indicative or such an occurrence. 

Amount: 	 609 

Status: 	 Open 

FILING NO. 	 9498550 

Type State: 	 State Tax 

Filed By: 	 STATE OF INDIANA 

Against: 	 FTR ENERGY SERVICES LW 

Where Filed: 	 NA 

Date Status Attained: 	05130113 

Date Filed: 	 05/30/13 

Latest Info Received: 	08/22/13 

Alien holder can file the same lien in more than one filing location. The appearance of multiple liens filed by the same lien holder against 

a debtor may be indicative of such an occurrence. 

Amount: 

Status: 

FILING NO. 

Type State: 

Filed By: 

Against: 

Where Filed: 

Date Status Attained: 

Date Filed: 

Latest Info Received: 

607 

Open  

9498551 

State Tax 

STATE OF INDIANA 

FTR ENERGY SERVICES LLC 

NA 

05/30/13 

05/30/13 

0812213 

Alien holder can file the same lien in more than one filing location. The appearance of multiple liens filed by the same lien holder against 

a debtor may be indicative of such an occurrence. 

Amount: 
	

608 

Status: 
	

Open 

FILING NO. 	 9444320 

Type State: 
	

State Tax 

Filed By: 
	

STATE OF INDIANA 

Against: 
	

FIR ENERGY SERVICES [[C 

Where Filed: 
	

NA 



Date Status Attained: 
	

04/03113 

Date Filed: 
	

04/03113 

Latest Info Received: 
	

08/22/13 

We currently don’t have enouqh data to disIay this section. 

We currently dent have enouqh data to display this section. 

Banking & Finance 

We currently don’t have enough data to display this section. 

We currently don’t have enough data to display this section. 

Special Events 

12110/2013 

Business address has changed from 64 N Main St, Norwalk, CT, 06854 to 1055 Wash/ngton 

Blvd 7th Fl, Stamford, CT, 06901 

Corporate Linkage 

STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT 
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This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities 

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on 

5/9/2014 2:22:07 PM

in

Case No(s). 12-1510-EL-CRS

Summary: Application Renewal Application for Retail Generation Providers and Power
Marketers - PART III electronically filed by Mr. Stephen M Howard on behalf of FTR Energy
Services, LLC


